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CORPURATE PROFILE

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”] was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Company law, Chapter 22 (law
3 of 1961

The Company’s domicile was changed to Bermuda by way of

, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

de-registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda on 10 August 2016
(Bermuda time). The shares of the Company are listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 18 March 2011

The Company and ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”] were principally
engaged in the production and sales of marble and marble related
products in China. The Group is a mining operator, focusing on
beige marble blocks and processing of marble slabs, and owned
the largest beige marble mine in China, namely Zhangjiaba Mine,
which is located in Zhenjiang Village, Xiangshui County, Jiangyou
City of Sichuan Province, China, in terms of marble resreves,
according fo the cerfification issued by China Stone Material

Association (FREBIAM & ) in August 2010.

According to the competfent person's report dated on 7 March
2011, the Zhangjiaba Mine contains 44.2 million cubic meter
The block rate is
expected fo be 38% on the marble resources, which is equivalent

of measured and indicated marble resources.

fo an estimated 16.8 million cubic meter of proved and probable
marble reserves.

4 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

TEEARER HxﬁﬂEﬁT(F$QTJ)$E?F
eSS EMNE2ERAE (1961 F 3%
EO - BEARERT) REE ﬁ%?ﬂﬂ)ﬂii
REHRBR QA -NR2016F8H10R (A
RERH) ZEREEFASRENEMER
AEAMEMEHEFSARELIREARE
ERERERRAARFE -ARANKN RN

13 18HEETEBMARXRIMERR
A (TBERPr]) TR ET -

ARmRREKBRR ([AEE])EBETHE
REAEARKRELAHBERNEERBEE -
AEBREINKEERNEARM RINTAK
AREBEORVOBRELER BARLURTEMD
NETHmEKBETINORRFEIL R
BHRBEAMBHER2010F8R FHHHZRA -
FXBBELURZBEATEAEARERAN
B -

RIBEBHA2011F3IA7HHNE E®R A LR
£ RRFEILE44,200,0003 5 K H R BA
FETARERER REAERAOTRAXIE
B A2 38%  TEETHEE 1M 16,800,000 77 K #
FELMBAEALARE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



CORPORATE PROFILE 1R ZR5FE

RESOURCES AND RESERVES

The resources and reserves estimates for marble stones of
Zhangjiaba Mine in Sichuan Province as at 31 December 2018
under JORC Code (as defined in Chapter 18 of the Listing Rules)

are set out in the following table:

JORC Resource and Reserve Class

B B ik
T&REHMN2018F 12431 HRIZEJORC # 8l
(EHERETRALISE)MM)IEERB]

WBFARERERE#E

2018
2018%

Cubic meter

3 T3 K

2017
2017%
Cubic meter

3 K

15.06 million B &
27.18 million B &

15.21 million B&
27 .44 million B &

42.24 million B &

42.65 million B &

4.87 million B8
8.82 million B &

5.42 million B &
Q.79 million B &

JORCERKFEHE R

Measured Resource REER
Indicated Resource HETEEIR
Total Resource BER
Proved Reserve FEHFE
Probable Reserve BEEE
Total Reserve ks

13.69 million B&

15.21 million B&

Note: The resources and reserves for marble stones of Zhangjiaba Mine were
estimated based on the independent competent person’s report dated on 7
March 2011 (as shown in the Company's Prospectus|. The increases and
decreases due to mining consumption and exploration during the year were
confirmed by internal experts.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FRERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of
China Kingstone Mining Holdings Llimited (the “Company”) and ifs
subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results

of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 ["FY2018").

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB67.7 million (FY2017: RMB31.4 million) and
a gross profit of RMB4.5 million (FY2017: RMB1.1 million),
representing an increase of approximately 115.6% and 309.1%,
respectively compared to those for the year ended 31 December

2017 ("FY20177).

Net loss aftributable to owners of the Company was RMB19.3
million for FY2018, as compared to net profit attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB7.8 million for FY2017. Basic loss
per share for FY2018 was RMBO.7 cents, as compared to basic
eamings per share of RMBO.5 cents for FY2017.

BUSINESS REVIEWS AND PROSPECTS

With the increasing concerns over escalating US-China trade
disputes that may possibly trigger slowing economy globally, the
real estate market and the construction materials market in the
PRC are facing fremendous challenges. In addition to the keen
competition from the overseas marble stone importers, the Group
has fo take extra cautious of and closely monitor the pace of the
expansion in marble stones business.

The Group has been developing the Zhangjioba mine to lower
benches for a higher quality large block production. It is sfill not
easy for the Group to estimate when the large marble blocks could
be produced. During the year, the Group continues to produce and
sell the marble slags from the stripping of the mine to the calcium
carbonate manufacturers. Apart from the sales of the marble slags,
the Group also engaged in trading of the marble slabs that are
sourced from other marble slab suppliers based on our customers’
needs.

6 ChinaKingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FFE3Res

The Group infends to extend the downsiream business of ground
calcium carbonate production by utilizing the Group’s own marble
resources from the Zhangjiaba mine which it could supplement
its existing marble stone and marble related business and also
expand the income stream of the Group. Ground calcium carbonate
is widely used as raw materials in production of building and
construction materials, paper, plastics, paints, coatings and even
personal health and food production. In August 2018, an equity
joint venture company (the “JV Company”), which is going fo
operate and develop the ground calcium carbonate production
in Jiangyou City, Sichuan Province, was formed as to 51% by the
Group and 49% by a joint venture partner (the “JV Partner”). In the
view of the Group owns the enriched marble resources and the
JV Partner possesses an extensive experience in the operation of
the ground calcium carbonate production, such cooperation with
the JV parter in the form of joint venture could be of great help in
initiating and implementing the Group's business development plan
of calcium carbonate business. The Group considers it would be a
stable and sustainable business in a good prospect. Currently, the
Group and JV partner were taking steps to initiate the new business
and also renegotiating the details of the cooperation arrangement
following the setlement of the litigation involving the Zhangjiaba

mine.

The Company will continue to consolidate the production and
operations of marble stone and its related business as well as
making good use of our marble resources. On the other hand, the
Group will also continue to explore new business opportunities so
arising in order to maximize shareholders’ value in the future.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude
to all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for
their aftention and support to the Group in the difficult times. | would
also like to thank our directors, management team and all staff of
the Group for their dedication and hard work to the Group for the
past year.

Zhang Cuiwei
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRR mb Rif

BUSINESS REVIEW

Sales Volume and Selling Price Analysis
The sales volume and selling price analysis are set out below:-

e/ AL
HEREEDT
WRREEATBRIIMT : -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12B31BLEE

2018 2017 Change
20184 20174 %

Sales volume: HE:
Marble slabs (square meter) REARM (FFXK) 204,566 96,000 +113.1%
Marble slags [fonnes| RNERED (W) 563,187 388,905 +44 8%
Average selling prices: FHEE:
Marble slabs (RMB per square meter] REBRERM (AR FHK) 257 246 +4.5%
Marble slags [RMB per tonnes| REABEA (ANRE,/W) 26.9 19.8 +35.9%
Exploration, Development and Production Activities B BB REEFH

The Group focuses on the development and mining at the
Zhangjiaba mine. The Zhangjiaba mine located in Sichuan Province
of China contains 44.2 million cubic meter of measured and
indicated marble resources, which represents 16.8 million cubic
meter of proved and probable marble reserves based on a block
rate of 38%, according to the independent competent person’s
report dated on 7 March 2011 (as shown in the Company's
Prospectus). There was no geological exploration activity in other
sites during the year.

The Zhangjiaba mine mainly divided info the eastern mining zone
and the western mining zone. During the year ended 31 December
2018 ("FY2018") and 2017 ("FY2017"), the Group continues to
carry out the stripping of the overburden materials at the surface for
the both eastern and western zone. It is expected that the further
development of the mine fo lower benches will be required for large
block production.

During the year, the aggregate expenditure of the mining operation
of the Group was approximately RMB20.7 million (FY2017:
RMB15.1 million), which mainly included depreciation on property,
plant and equipment of RMB12.3 million (FY2017: RMB9.3
million), staff costs of approximately RMBO.5 million (FY2017:
RMBO.6 million).

During FY2018, the Group has not entered into new confracts
and did not have any material commitment relating to infrastructure
projects, subconiracting arrangements and purchase of equipment
for the Zhangjiaba mine.

8  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE515mb il

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB36.3 million
or 115.6% to approximately RMB67.7 million in FY2018 from
approximately RMB31.4 million in FY2017. The increase was
primarily due fo an increase of RMB28.9 million in sales of marble
slabs and an increase of RMB7 .4 million in sales of marble slags.

Gross profit increased by approximately RMB3.4 million or 309.1%
to approximately RMB4.5 million in FY2018 from approximately
RMB1.1 million in FY2017. The increase was primarily due to
an improvement in the margin of marble slags, resulting from an
increase in their selling price during FY2018.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased from RMBO.4 million in
FY2017 to RMB1.2 million in FY2018. The increase was primarily
due to an increase in the fransportation cost, resulting from an
increase in sales volume of marble slags.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased from RMB39.0 million in
FY2017 to RMB29.4 million in FY2018. The decrease was
primarily due to an implementation of cost cutting measures by the
Group, including a reduction of staff cost, in order to improve the
operational efficiency.

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company

The Group recorded a loss of RMB19.3 million in FY2018 as
compared fo a profit of RMBZ.8 million in FY2017, as a result of a
combined effect of (i) an increase of RMB3.5 million in gross profit
of the Group for FY2018; [ii) a gain RMB82.4 million from reversal
of provision for litigation regarding discontinuance of the litigation
between the Company and Royal Moon International Company
Llimited during FY2017; [iii) a provision of RMB37.5 million
for litigation in relation to a claim by Mr. Shao Weiquan ("Mr.
Shao”) against Sichuan Jiangyou Jinshida Stone Co., ltd (“Sichuan
Jinshida") for FY2017 while a reversal of RMB15.7 million of
provision for litigation for the same case for FY2018 as result of
the sefflement agreement made between Mr. Shao and Sichuan
Jinshida; and (iv) an increase of RMB4.9 million in impairment loss
on trade receivables for FY2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE351smb il

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total equity interests was
approximately RMB401.2 million {31 December 2017: RMB409.9
million) representing a decrease by 2.1% as compared with that of

FY2017.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB65.1 million (31 December
2017: RMB168.6 million]. Cash and bank balances were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”].
The Group has adequate financial resources to meet the anficipated
future liquidity requirement and capital expenditure commitment.

Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure was amounted to RMB2.8 million
during FY2018, which was primarily related to the stripping cost
capitalised for the mine platforms.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group principally operates ifs businesses in the PRC. The Group
is not exposed fo significant foreign exchange risk as most of the
Group's business transactions, assefs and liabilities are principally
denominated in Chinese Renminbi ("RMB"), which is the functional
and reporting currency of the Group, except cerfain administrative
expenses, denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollar, in the Hong Kong office. The Group has not entered into any
foreign exchange contract as hedging measures.

Environment Policies and Performance

Please refer to the “Environment, Social and Governance Report
contained in this annual report for further information on the work
down and efforts made by the Group on environment protection,
legal compliance and other aspects for the sustainable growth and
development of the businesses of the Group.

10 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE515mb il

Compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations
During the Reporting year and up to the date of this report, the
Board was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

Key Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes employees as valuable assets of the Group.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to employees
and reviews staff benefit regularly. The Group infends to use the
best effort fo attract and atfain appropriate and suitable personnel
fo provide services to the Group.

The Group attaches importance to the re|o1fionships with its customers
and suppliers. The Group believes that building a long-term
beneficial re|otionship with each of them is of paramount importance
to establish mutual trust, loyalty and business development and on
which the Group's success and sustainability.

Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's five largest
customers accounted for Q0% (2017: 97%) of the total sales of the
Group and the largest customers accounted for 46% (2017: 41%)
of the total sales of the Group. The five largest customers, which are
all medium-size enterprises, came from the sales of marble slabs and
marble slags business. They commenced business with the Group

since 2013 to 2017.

The Group will continue to maintain and strengthen its relationship
with its customers through regular contacts with them. It is the
indusfrial norm that the mine owner usually select a few major
distributors and manufacturers close to the production site in order
fo save fransportation, management cost and sales and marketing
cost, it is also the reason that the major customers of the Group
are mostly close to Zhangjiaba mine, thus the Directors consider
that there is no significant risk associated with reliance on major
customers due to ifs product nature. The Group is sfriving to broaden
customer base by offering new packages to distributors to boarder
the distribution network and integrating the downstream producﬁon
of ground calcium carbonate business. The Group believes our
reliance on the five major customers would be further reduced.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE351smb il

The Group's trading terms with its major customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period granted fo customers of sales of marble
slabs business is generally 90 days from the delivered date of the
products and sales of marble slags business is O — 90 days from
the delivered date of the products. Some major customers which
have long re|oﬁonship with the Group were granted for a longer
payment term. The Group seeks fo maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables fo minimize credit risk. Overdue balances
are regularly reviewed by senior management. As at the date of the
annual report, the custfomers have made subsequent sefflement of
approximately RMB10.6 million for the invoices.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, none of the
Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders who, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued capital had any interest in the five largest customers. To the
best of knowledge of the Board, the Company is not aware of any
relationship among the key customers.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a tofal of 23 (31
December 2017: 25) employees in the Group. The total staff cost,
including directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and pension
scheme contfribution, was approximately RMB6.8 million (FY2017:
RMBQ.1 million) in FY2018.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in
Hong Kong and the PRC, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject to
the Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute discretionary
bonus fo its employees as an incentive for their confribution to the

Group.

Use of proceeds from fund raising activities

Right Issue

On 3 March 2017 and 24 April 2017, the Company entered info
an agreement and supplemental agreement with an underwriter,
respectively, by issuing 2,360,068,975 rights shares to qualifying
shareholders by way of the rights issue at subscription price of
HK$0.12 per rights share on the basis of five rights shares for every
share in issue on the record date. The net proceeds from the rights
issue were approximately HK$276.54 million.
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As at 29 September 2017, the Company resolved to change the
use of the unutilized net proceeds of HK$50.94 million for the

setflement of the potential damages arising from the litigation to

use the unutilized proceeds of (i) approximately HK$15 million

for purchasing of machineries for replacement of well-worn mining

equipment; (i) approximately HK$20 million for marble slabs

business, and (i) HK$15.94 million for general working capital.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated

29 September 2017

As at 31 December 2018, the net proceeds had been utilised as

follows:

R2017F9A208  RARARZ GRS AB AT
BIRIEFEES50,940,0008 TR B e i AR &
ERDELEZBEEBEREETA()BAH
BAT1EIEL 15,000,000 7T AR B Z
NEREENRBERE: (| BRBAMER
TH#120,000,000/8 7t B K2 A iR A 2755
&[|||]H¢5E§b%}5ﬁ?§rﬁlﬁ 5,940,000 7T /A
E—REEEL -FBH2EARAIBEHA
201 7$QHQQE|Z’_\¢°

MR2018F12A31B-FIERBEFEECHAN
T

Intended use of Actual use of

proceeds proceeds
FEREZFEARE FEFREZERAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET
The contribution of funding for T E A ERRBEIE R
the calcium carbonate business
— The set-up of manufacturing building —BEREERF (B
lincluding the property, plant and Mm% BB R&RE)
equipment) 149,150 60,000
— General working capital of — B IS E
the calcium carbonate business —ﬂﬁ*%@ﬁ% 42,610 -
General working capital of the Group AEEH—REEED
— Purchasing of machineries —Eﬁﬁﬁﬁlflgﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
for replacement of wellworn RIER
mining equipment 15,000 15,000
- Marble slabs business — RIBRIRM E7 20,000 49,720
— Seftlement of litigation involving —HES RO RED
Sichuan Jinshida (Note 1) FFEa (FFET) = 24,976
— Other general working capital —Htb—REEES 49,780 55,198
276,540 204,894

Note 1:

For the details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2 November
2017, 17 April 2018, 23 April 2018, 18 May 2018, 23 May 2018, 13 June
2018, 20 June 2018, 26 June 2018 and 5 July 2018.
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Calcium carbonate business

In April 2017, the Group entered in a non-legal binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with a ground calcium
carbonate manufacturer to form a joint venture company to extend
the downsfream business of calcium carbonate production in
Jiangyou City, Sichuan Province, the PRC.

In June 2018, the Group and a joint venture partner (the “JV
Partner”), who is the shareholder of the ground calcium carbonate
manufacturer, entered into a joint venture agreement [the "]V
Agreement”’) in relation to formation of a joint venture company
(the "}V Company”) to operate the calcium carbonate production
in Jiangyou City, Sichuan Province, the PRC. The JV Company has
the initial registered capital of RMB10 million in which the capital
contribution in the amount of RMB5.1 million and RMB4.9 million
will be made by the Group and the JV Partner, respectively.

During the vyear, the JV partner has obtained the land use
approval for part of the planned production site from the land
and Resources Department of Jiangyou City and also obtained the
Construction Permit on site from the relevant authority in China. In
the wake of the setflement of the litigation involving the auction
of the Zhangjiaba mine in July 2018, the Group and JV Partner
was eagerly undergoing the re-negotiation for the defails of the
cooperation arrangement. In August 2018, an equity joint venture
company (the “JV Company”) was formed as to 51% by the Group
and 49% by the JV Partner in accordance with the JV Agreement.
In virtue of certain fund needs for the calcium carbonate business
development plan that should have been made by the Group under
the MOU have already been contributed by |V Partner, it was such
that the details of cooperation arrangement need to be negotiated
anew. Therefore, the timeline of the cash dep|oymenf for the calcium
carbonate production has not been determined as of the date of
this annual report. During the vyear, the Group made the deposit
payment of approximately RMB51.6 million for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment in respect of the calcium carbonate
production.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSHREIRBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Zhang Cuiwei

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei (5RZ2 %) ("“Ms. Zhang”), aged 49, is an
executive director of the Company. Ms. Zhang graduated in Foreign
Llanguages and Lliterature from Jilin University of the PRC. Ms. Zhang
is primarily responsible for corporate operational management and
administration of the Group. Ms. Zhang has about 20 years of
experience in corporafe management, personnel and administration
affairs.

Zhang Jianzhong

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong (3R # &) , aged 60, is an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Zhang Jianzhong is an associate professor,
conferred by Ministry of Geology and Mineral Resources of the
People's Republic of China, and holds a bachelor degree in
Engineering and law. Since 1991, Mr. Zhang Jianzhong has
been involved in management work relating to stone mining,
processing and marketing. From 1991 to May 2002, he worked
in Wuhan lingda Stone Materials Co., Ud.* (REZBEAME
R A@]), which is a company founded by the China University
of Geosciences* (Bl E K2 ) and other parties in 1990,
where he had taken up posts such as deputy factory director,
office head and factory director. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Zhang Jianzhong served as depuly general manager of VWuhan
Zhongdida Assets Management Co., ltd. (BUEH K& EL &
FRXA]) . Mr. Zhang Jianzhong has extensive expertise in geology,
and sophisticated experience in stone mine exploration and
development.

Zhang Weijun

Mr. Zhang Weijun (5R%&E ), aged 59, is an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Zhang Weijun is primarily responsible for the
business development of the Group. Mr. Zhang Weijun has around
10 years of experience in mining industry and is currently a vice
president of a mining company in the PRC.
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Zhang Mian
Mr. Zhang Mian (5R%1) ,
Company. Mr. Zhang Mian graduated from South China Normal

aged 61, is an executive director of the

University in China and has many years of experience in journalism
and communication and media management. He has worked in one
of the most influential mainstream newspaper group in South China.
He has also accumulated rich experience in business management
in the fields of construction, decoration engineering, packaging and
printing, new material development and application.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wang Yi Hua
Ms. Wang Yi Hua (E#2) ("Ms. Wang”), aged 47,

independent non-executive director of the Company. Ms. Wang

is an

holds a Bachelor Degree in Management from the Party School
of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (Hubei
Branch] and obtained the Qualification Certificate of Speciality
and Technology approved and issued by Ministry of Personnel,
PRC with speciality in intermediate level of accountancy conferred
by the Ministry of Finance, PRC. Ms. Wang has over 20 years of
experience in finance, accounting and relevant management gained
from an investment company in the PRC.

Sheng Guoliang

M:r. Sheng Guoliang (B BI R ) ("Mr. Sheng”), aged 50,
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Sheng has
completed a three years' course in Public Affairs Management at

is an

Huzhou University. Mr. Sheng has around 5 years of experience in
mining industry and hotel management business, respectively.

Yang Ruimin
Mr. Yang Ruimin (% 8 8) ("Mr. Yang”), aged 36,
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Yang holds

is an

a bachelor degree in Economic and Administrative Management
from PLA Nanjing Political College (I A RfE M E R BUSE
Bt) . Mr. Yang has over 10 years of experience in human resource
management in different industries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXEiIfHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives fo attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and enhance the
shareholders’ value.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “listing Rules”] for the
year ended 31 December 2018 ("FY2018") except for a deviation
from code provisions A.2.1, A.1.8, E.1.2 and A.5.1 of CG Code.

Deviation from A.2.1 of CG Code

Under code provision A.2.1 of CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer ["CEQ") should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive officer
should be clearly established and sef out in writing. During FY2018,
there is no officer carrying the title of CEQ. The duties of the CEO
are undertaken by executive directors of the Company. Although the
responsibility of chairman and a part of responsibility of CEO are
vested in Mr. Wang Minliang during FY2018 until his resignation
on 12 September 2018, in which all major decisions are made
in consultation with the other Board members and the senior
management of the Company. Following the resignation of Mr.
Wang Minliang due fo his health reason, the position of chairman
is vacant up to the date of this annual report. During the period
of the absence of the chairman, the independent board members
will temporarily take the role of chairman to ensure that the board
is effective in its task of sefting and implementing the company’s
direction and strategy. The Board considers that there is sufficient
balance of power and the current arrangement maintains a strong
management position of the Company.
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Deviation from A.1.8 of CG Code

Under code provision of A.1.8 of CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against the Directors. Currently, the Company does not have
insurance cover in this respect as the Board believes that, with
the current infernal control system and the close supervision of the
management, the Director’s risk of being sued or getting involved in
litigation in their capacity as a director of the Company is relatively
low. Nevertheless, the Board will review the need for insurance
cover from time tfo time.

Deviation from E.1.2 of CG Code

Under the code provision of E.1.2 of CG Code, Mr. Wang
Minliang, the then chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2018 due
fo business reasons. Ms. Zhang Cuiwei, the executive director of
the Company, was authorized by the Chairman to present to chair
the meeting.

Deviation from A.5.1 of CG Code

Under the code provision of A.5.1 of CG Code, the Company
should establish a nomination committee which is chaired by the
chairman of the board or an independent non-executive director and
comprises a maijority of independent non-executive directors. Mr.
Ma Ho Yin resigned as an independent non-executive Director and
a chairman of nomination committee of the Company on 12 March
2018 and Mr. Yang Ruimin was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company on 11 June 2018. During the period between such
personnel changes, the Company did not comply with the code

provision of A.5.1 of CG Code.

DIRECTORS” SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Llisting Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries with all directors of the Company
(the "Board” or “Directors”), all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
fransaction throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(1)

Composition of the Board

The Board has maintained a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of
the Group and for the exercise of independent judgment.
The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Each Director of
the Company has been appointed on the strength of his/her
caliber, experience, professional qualification and potential
fo contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and its
businesses.

The composition of the Board was set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Minliang (Chairman)
[resigned on 12 September 2018)

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong

Mr. Zhang Weijun

Mr. Zhang Mian
[appointed on 4 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Ho Yin (resigned on 12 March 2018)
Ms. Wang Yihua

Mr. Sheng Guoliang

Mr. Yang Ruimin (appointed on 11 June 2018)

During FY2018, to the best knowledge of the Company, there
was no financial, business or family relationship among the
members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Byelaws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Members after his
appointment and be subject fo re-election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition fo the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
one-third but not less than one-third) shall refire from office by
rotation. Each director shall refire at least once every three
years.
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(1)

20

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 16 of this
annual report.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of independent non-executive Directors [the “INEDs”)
was appointed for a term of three years, subject to re-election
by rotation at least once every three years. The re-election
of each of these INEDs who has served on the Board for
more than nine years is subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

The Company received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board has reviewed the independent non-executive Directors
and considered that all of them are independent with the
definition of the Listing Rules.

On 12 March 2018, Mr. Ma Ho Yin resigned as an
independent non-executive Director. Following the resignation
of Mr. Ma Ho Yan, the Company has only 2 independent
non-executive Directors, which fell below the minimum number
required under Rule 3.10[1) of the Listing Rules during the
period between 12 March 2018 and 11 June 2018. On
11 June 2018, Mr. Yang Ruimin was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director. The Company has 3
independem non-executive Directors Thereoﬁer, which satisfies
the requirement under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.

Saves as disclosed above, the Company complied with

requirements under Rule 13.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules throughout FY2018.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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() Attendance of Directors at the board meeting

and general meeting

The Directors can attend meeting in person or by means of
such telephone, electronic or other communication facilities as
permit all persons partficipating in the meefing fo communicate
with each other simultaneously and instantaneously in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The company secrefary of the
Company (the "Company Secretary”) will assist the chairman
of the Board and/or executive Director to prepare the agenda
of the meeting and each Director may request to include any
matters in the agenda for the regular Board meefings. All
Directors may seek the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. All directors will also be provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and
upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company's expense. All minutes of Board meetfings
were recorded in sufficient detail, including matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board and are open for
inspection by Directors.

The Bye-laws contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

There were 8 board meefings and 1 general meetings held
during FY2018. The attendance of each Director at the board
meetings and general meeting is sef out below:

() EEREEEEERRRAED

=

REARAR EFAHREXNBBEF
E2EAXGZALTRILERRF KA
HEB 2 EA(NEF EFHHMB
ARE)HFEEHE - ARAAAME (2
AWEDBBHETSER L HHNT
EFXERGeRRRE MBEFHIEX
BEMEENMAEZTERHE@ZRREL
N-2BEFHASKIAAMENER
kR momdwEecfistEaRE
BEEEHNEESRHESHEN -28E
ENBESREIERABITRENBE
MEBAEER EFAHEBEEBRLT
SKBUEXER BRAAARAAE-
MMEEZEEEZMNEH RO FALT
R BREFECERNFTANMERN
RE ARARATEEERM-

RAAAUBEGR REESTHRFN
ETABBARR T HEBEERAERE
EFREFANSERIN R EMER
REFNFEAEEANE

R2018MBMFEREA AABE BT8R
EEZg@aRIRAERARE - BESFHE
EZeRMBERARENREHINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEBTEBERE

Director Board meeting ~ General meeting
= EEERE BRAE
Mr. Wang Minliang TRREA (R2018%F

[resigned on 12 September 2018} QOR12BEHT) 4/6 0/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei RERLZ L 8/8 1/1
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong REBLE 3/8 0/1
Mr. Zhang Weijun REELE 5/8 0/1
Mr. Ma Ho Yin HIEB A (R20184F

[resigned on 12 March 2018) 3AI12BEHE) 0/1 0/0
Ms. Wang Yinhua TEELT L 4/8 0/1
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BB R ELE 6/8 0/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin BEEE L (R20184

(appointed on 11 June 2018) 6HATTBEZRE) 1/5 0/0

FEESAREEZERERAF
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(IV) The Board and Management

(V)

22

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Group, which includes leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions,
internal control, risk management and performances. The
principal functions of the Board is fo (1) convene general
meetings and report the Board's work at genero\ meetings;
(2) implement the resolutions passed by the shareholders
in general meetings; (3) consider and approve strategies,
financial objectives, annual budget, investment proposals of
the Group; [4) formulate the proposals for profit distributions;
(5) assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group; and (6] exercise other powers, functions and
duties conferred by the shareholders in general meeting. It is
the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company's
circumsfances and fo ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
obijectives.

The management team is delegated with the authority and
responsible by the Board for the day-to-day management of
the Group and is accountable to the Board. The management
team has overall responsibility for formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the Group and is also
responsible for the supervision and execution of the plans
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has a board diversity policy [the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board fo enhance its operating results and quality of
its performance.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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(V1)

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees diversity af Board level as
an essentfial element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, regional and indusiry experience,
background, gender and other qualities of the Directors. These
differences will be considered in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All appointments of the Directors
are made on meritocracy, and will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven
Directors, amongst them, three are Independent Non-executive
Directors, thereby promoting critical review and confrol of
the management process. The Board is also characterized by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
age, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’'s composition,
the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) considered that the requirements of the Policy had
been met.

Continuous professional development of
Directors

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments
fo or updates on relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
addition, the Company encourages the Directors to enroll
in a wide range of professional development courses and
seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and corporate governance practices so that
they can continuously improve their relevant knowledge and
skills. The Company will, if necessary, provide timely and
regular frainings to the Directors to ensure that they are kept
abreast with the latest requirements under the Listing Rules and
corporafe governance pracfices.

HE S AREERARA T
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer (the
"CEQ") are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence
and proper checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the
business strategy and direction of the Company and has executive
responsibility, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of its
responsibilities. The CEO is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company's strategies and the co-ordination of
overall business operations.

During FY2018, there is no officer carrying the fitle of CEO. The
duties of the CEO are undertaken by executive directors of the
Company. Although the responsibility of chairman and a part of
responsibility of CEQ are vested in Mr. Wang Minliang during
FY2018 until his resignation on 12 September 2018, in which
all major decisions are made in consultation with the other Board
members and the senior management of the Company. Following
the resignation of Mr. Wang Minliang due to his health reason, the
position of chairman is vacant up to the date of this annual report.
During the period of the absence of the chairman, the independent
board members will temporarily take the role of chairman to ensure
that the board is effective in its task of setting and implementing the
company's direction and strategy. The Board considers that there is
sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement maintains a
strong management position of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

()  Audit Committee
The audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) of the Company
has been established by the Board with specific written terms
of reference and all members of the Audit Committee are
independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs").

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the primary duties of the audit committee of the Company
are moin|y to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor,
the review of the financial statements and material advice
in respect of financial reporting and the oversight of internal
control procedures of the Group.

24 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Ms. Wang Yihua, Mr. Sheng Guoliang
and Mr. Yang Ruimin. Ms. Wang Yihua is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

During FY2018, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings fo,
including but not limited to, 1) review the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2017, 2 review the inferim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2018 before their submission
to the Board and monitored the integrity of such financial
statements, 3] review and assess the auditor's independence
or objective in relation to the provision of non-audit services; 4)
review the Company's financial positions, internal control and
risk management systems and give suggestions fo the Board
and 5) meet with independent auditor to discuss the nature
and scope of the audit and the area of concerns.

The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of
the members of the Audit Commitiee at the audit committee
meeting are sef out below:

RAZEAH BAZBEH=2BILEH
TEFAK NETE2FELL BEAREERS
BEEE - FTEEZXLIRBEAZEGIR-

R2018MBREERN - BEFZESEET2X
RN (BREEFTRR) 1)EHEZE2017F
12A3VALFEMNFERE 2/ RAEEE
BERXEZE2018F6A30R ERAARHEI%
BAMETENYERZEV BRI BN
St KA EFMAEREEEFRE T E
MBI EXEBME 4RI AQFNHMBR
R-ABEERRAREERR UMEFGIRE
iz RS) BB FEG AN E W AR W EA A
MERESEEIARBIES-

B ZEEMAKNMBRFZEERELREE
BE 10PN &b

Attendance/
Members of Audit Committee Number of meeting
BN EEERE HEBIEBERE
Ms. Wang Yihua (Chairman) TEREZL (FE) 2/2
Mr. Ma Ho Yin BEBLE
[resigned on 12 March 2018) (R2018F 38128 E ) 0/0
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BEREE 2/2
Mr. Yang Ruimin ke Gilast
[appointed on 11 June 2018) (R2018FO6RTTHEZE) 0/1
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(1)

26

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of
the Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Comnmittee, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are mainly fo make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and the senior management of the Group, review
performance-based remuneration and ensure none of the

Directors determine their own remuneration.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Sheng Guoliang and
Mr. Yang Ruimin, and one Executive Director, namely Ms.
Zhang Cuiwei. Mr. Sheng Guoliang is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During FY2018, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meefing
fo review the remuneration packages of the Directors and the
management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has delegated responsibility to
defermine the remuneration packages on individual executive
Directors and senior management, in compliance with B.1.2

(c)(i) of CG Code.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee and
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at

the remuneration committee meeting are set out below:

(1)

FHWEES
EEgERUARAFMEZE S (T M
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IREBUARTARAEZTREEEN
RS

FWZEQRERBRAREEEMNATE
ELEREEBABRNHFMNGE AN
BERERATAEB1.2(c)(i) he

REFHFMEEGKE

Mz 8end
CTERNREEINAT

FHFHMEE

Attendance/
Members of Remuneration Committee Number of meeting
FMESERE HEBITEERH
Mr. Sheng Guoliang (Chairman) BEREE (£E) 1/1
Mr. Ma Ho Yin BEBERE
(resigned on 12 March 2018) (FRA201843812H&T) 0/0
Mr. Wang Minliang ITRREAE
[resigned on 12 September 2018 (PR2018%F9A 128 B {T) 1/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin B BEE
(appointed on 11 June 2018) (FR2018F6A1THEZET) 0/0
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REBHAZ L
(appointed on 12 September 2018) (20189 12BEEF) 0/0
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(M) Nomination Committee (1)
The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”] of
the Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. Details of the
authority and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises two INED, namely Mr. Yang Ruimin and Mr. Sheng
Guoliang, and one Executive Director, namely Ms. Zhang
Cuiwei. Mr. Yang Ruimin is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During FY2018, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and concluded that members of the Board have possessed the
experfise and independence to carry out the Board's functions
and responsibilifies.

REZEE®
EEgENRUARAREZZEE ([1ER
ZEg|) REFEEEBESRE-

RERZZEENRERE RE2ZE
ENIZREARVERBAEERA
EEEFEXNEMNAL - EREFEN
ZEMEFHEIHEINESTSHELER
ER-RAZEBEENERIREETNFE
ARARE R B RXFTE B ER] -

RABERH REZEEAMBBY
FRTEF(IERBEERBEBEARE
E)R—281TEF (MRIHLL)E
Ro-GHBEERRBEZREEER -

R2018MBFEER - RHZEEEETT
2REBIRITESTEHRE RERME
KUY RAREFEREARBEENRLR
BLIGMABTETEMREREE-

Attendance/
Members of Nomination Committee Number of meeting
REZEENE HE BITEERHY
Mr. Ma Ho Yin [Chairman) BEBLE (FE)

[resigned on 12 March 2018) (R2018F3 /8128 ET) 0/0
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BEREE 2/2
Mr. Wang Minliang ITRREAE 1/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin (Chairman) GHSUTE (£E)

[appointed on 11 June 2018) (R2018F6RA1 1B EEF) 0/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REBHR AT 1/1
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted a nomination policy [“Nomination Policy”) on 1

January 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as follows:

1. Objective

1.1

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as directors
of the Company at general meetings or appoint him/her
to fill casual vacancies.

The Nomination Policy helps the Nomination Committee
and the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate fo the requirements of the Group's business
development.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate.

e Quadlifications and experience in the relevant
industries in which the Company's business is
involved or is going fo be involved;

e  Commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

e Character and integrity; and

e Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
fo gender, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant fo be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion fo nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

3. Nomination Procedures

3.1

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may
select candidates from various channels, including but
not limited to nominating from Board members and
management, a referral by business partners, internal
promotion and re-designation and exfernal recruitment
agencies;

28  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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3.2 Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the
Company. The Nomination Committee may request
candidates fo provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary;

3.3 The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed
candidate’s suitability with reference to the selection
criteria stated above and make recommendation(s) to the
Board's consideration and approval;

3.4 In the case of the re-election of a director at the general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall review the
overall contribution of the directors to the Company and
their services, their partficipation and performance within
the Board, and whether such director still meets the
needs fo complement the Company's corporate strategy.

4. Review of the Nomination Policy
4.1 The Board will review the Nomination Policy from fime
to time.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges ifs responsibility to prepare the Group's
financial statements for each financial period, which give a frue
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. The Company deploys appropriate
and sufficient resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance, position
and prospects. The inferim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a fimely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

HE S AREERARA T
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable for the services provided for
FY2018 to Elite Partners CPA Llimited (“Elite Partners’) is set out
below:

Services rendered

& i 7 T

B2018H MEEERE MR MEN K
MNHETEREAMEHHAARAR ([HLE
rMFHBRIIMT -

Fee paid/payable

REB KRB e/ EBNER
RMB'000

AREET T

Audit of financial statements B B wmE 470
Agreed-upon procedures of inferim review HETEHREF =
Financial and tax due diligence MBMREERAS =
Other non-audit services H i IE 5 AR TS 52
522

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk

management and infernal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group's accounting, infernal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and infernal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group'’s assets and stakeholder's inferest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal confrol systems are

designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritized
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type
of risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follows:
- Risk refention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimize the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and infernal control system are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For FY2018, the Group has engaged an external advisory firm to
perform the review on the risk management policy and procedures
and carry out the internal audit function to ensure the effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk management and infernal control system
of the Group. There is no significant deficiency and weakness on
the internal control system that may affect the financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions has been
identified by the external advisory firm for FY2018.

The Board reached the conclusion that the risk management
and infernal control system and procedures of the Group were
reasonably in place and effective.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee (“Mr. Cheung”] is the company secrefary
of the Company. He is the employee of the Company and has

adequate knowledge on the Company to discharge his duty as the
company secrefary of the Company. Mr. Cheung confirmed that he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for
FY2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1)

(1)

(I11)

32

Shareholders convene an special general
meeting

Pursuant to the Byedows and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, any one or more registered shareholders holding af
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the voting right
at general meetfings of the Company (the “Requisitionists”)
shall, at all times, have the right, by writlen requisition that
must be signed by the Requisitionists to the Board deposited
at the registered office of the Company to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and such meeting
shall be held within three months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed fo convene such meefing, the Requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionists by reason of the failure
of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

Shareholders put enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should send their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company's share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meeting of the Company.

Shareholders put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions under the Company’s Byelaws or the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda regarding procedures for
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings
other than a proposal of a person for election as director.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to
convene a special general meeting for any business specified
in such written requisition.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

(1)

(i)

(I11)

Constitutional documents
The Company confirmed that there has been no significant

change in the Company’s memorandum of associations and
the Bye-laws during FY2018.

Communication with shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
and the investors. The Board also recognizes that effective
communication with the investors is the key to establish
investor's confidence and to atfract new investors. Therefore,
the Group s committed to maintaining a high degree of
fransparency to ensure that the investors and the shareholders
receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information
of the Group by the publication of annual report, interim
reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also
publishes all such documents on the Company's website at
www.kingstonemining.com. The Directors and the Board
committee members are available to answer questions at
annual general meeting of the Company.

Dividend policy
The Company adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends on 1 January 2019.

transparency of the Company and facilitating its shareholders

It aims at enhancing

and the potential investors of the Company to make informed
investment decision relating to the Company. The Board will
review the dividend policy from time fo time.

While the Company intends to declare and pay dividends in
the future, the payment and the amount of any dividends will
depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to:
[a)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;
(b) the Group's expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion

plans;

[c] refained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(d)  the Group's liquidity position;
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le) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

() any other factors that the board of directors of the
Company deems relevant.

Shareholders will be entitled to receive such dividends pro
rata according to the amounts paid up or credited as paid
up on the shares. The declaration, payment, and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to declare or distribute any
dividend in the amount sef out in any of the plans or at all.
The Company's dividend disfribution record in the past may
not be used as a reference or basis fo determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.
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RIR - BRESHS

ENVIRONMENTAL

The mining operation in Zhangjiaba Mine (‘the Mine") located
at Zhenjiang Village, Xiangshui County, Jiangyou City of Sichuan
Province, China, is subject to various PRC environmental protection
laws and regulations relating to a broad range of environmental
protection matters, such as land rehabilitation, water and soil
preservation, noise control and discharge of wastewater and
pollutants. It is the Group's policy to comply with all relevant laws
and regulations.

Emissions

Air emissions

The mining of beige marble blocks and processing of marble slabs
is the major active excavation operation of the Group. The Mine
is an open-pit mine and excavator machines, which are powered
by diesel, are used for mining activities, would emit CO,, CO and

HC.

The Group adheres to the principle of active participation and
environmental responsibilities. The Group not only fulfils its market
mandate but also greatly support green activities and actively
implement effective policies aimed at emission reduction. The Group
will consider acquiring more environmental friendly machinery when
the existing machinery is no longer in use.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, air emissions including
Nitrogen Oxides [NOx|, Sulphur Oxides (SOx| and respiratory
suspended particles ["RSP”, also known as Particulate Matter
["PM"]) were mainly produced from the company vehicles and
mining machinery which weigh over 5 tonnes. The combustion
of 5,726 litres of unleaded petrol and 403,202 litres of diesels
emitted 2,756 kg, 6.6 kg and 128.9 kg of NOx, SOx and PM

respectively.

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

The Group has constantly updated with the local legislation and
standards for environmental profection and assessed whether these
legislations and standards are related to the business of the Group
and the Group's compliance sfatus. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group has complied with environmental laws
and regulations applicable to the Group’s business. The Group
will continue looking for ways to reduce CO, emissions and land
contamination.
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Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 2018 (tons) 2017 (tons)
BEREHR 2018% (W) 20174 (W)
Scope 1 — emission from the mobile 5 ——REBBMREIRA TN

combustion sources 1,089 880
Scope 2 - acquired electricity emissions HE—-ESNENHER 1,117 867
Scope 3 — indirect emissions from paper HRE=—EEBESRENERR

waste disposed at landfills and ARSI NEEITES

business fravel by air flight or train AT B9 PR 5 BE AR 4 2
Total GHG emissions BERBHREAE 2,210 1,749
Intensity of GHG emissions EHEERERBHEREE

per ton of production 4.0 4.5

Waste productions

Waste production was mainly attributed to the domestic wastes of
office and no hazardous waste produced at the mine. Throughout
the Group, the following actions have been taken to reduce waste
productions:

- communicate through e-mails o reduce the use of papers;
- doublesided printings; and
- reuse single-sided printed papers.

Waste micro dust management

The Group blasts, stacks, loads and unloads ore during the
production process and produces microscopic dust. Therefore,
the Group uses a wetdrilling method, ventilation machines and
rock-surface cleaning regularly fo control the micro dust emissions
and avoid negative effects 1o the environment.

Waste water management

The site extract water from nearby wells, mostly used for daily
consumption and dust reduction. To reduce dust parficles in air,
the Group has in place waterspraying facilities fo spray water on
the marble to reduce dust. The Group had installed proper ducts
and canals install to prevent any contaminated waste from leaking
into surrounding waters and recycle some of the water. The proper
collection, treatment and recycling and reuse of wastewater af the
Group help protect natural receiving water bodies in the surrounding
areas and the ecological environment.
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Waste mining rock management

The mine has been in confinuous production for many vyears. The
mining rock produced from the site was used for road paving and
underground filling of mines after being crushed. The remaining
wasfe was stockpiled in special waste rock treatment planfs.

Noise management

To management to noise emission during production the Group had
installed noise-abatement equipment and other vibration reduction
methods. The Group considered noise pollution issues when
choosing the mining area, thus the Group chose the mining area
furthest away from residential areas. lastly, the Group strictly follows
emission standards regarding noise levels. (TR R ERZR
4) . The location of the site complies with applicable standards
for buffer distances to sensitive receptors, such as residences and
villages, thus minimizing the negative impact.

Use of resources

The Group utilizes resources effectively and responsibly to achieve
sustainable development. The Group encourages staff to adopt
environmentally responsible habits in their day to day activities,
and the Group consfantly measure waste production, and seek fo
promote use of recyclable materials.

The Group has tfried its very best to reduce the consumption of
energy and emission. The total production volume is approximately
563,187 tons (2017: 388,905 tons). Total electricity consumption
for 2018 was 1,244,966 kWh with an average consumption of
2.21 kWh per ton of production. Total paper usage for 2018 was
212 kg with an average consumption of 9.2 kg fons per staff.

The Group did not have problems in seeking appropriafe water
resources. The existing supply of water resources could satisfy the
Groups needs in the aspects of volume, quality of water and the
guarantee of water supply facilities. In 2018, the Group carried
out measures of reduction in water consumption, recycling and
utilization of industrial waste water.
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Environment and natural resources

As mining operators, the Group is in the business of exfracting
natural resources at the Zhangjiaba Mine. The Management of the
Croup believes every practicable effort had been made to ensure
their collateral impact to the surrounding environment is kept to a
minimum. Right at the planning stage of the excavation the location
is sef fo be outside the urban planning area, and does not involve
designated areas such as nature reserves, scenic spofs and cultural
relics {under preservation protection). Further, there are no farmlands
are located near the mining sites.

It is the firm beliefs of the Management that both the effective and
efficient use of energy and due care to the environment are vital for
sustainable development of the Group. Hence the Group closely
monitors and reviews the relevant data from fime to time, minimizing
the negative effect to the environment and maximizing its business
development and operation at the same time.

SOCIAL

The Group has a comprehensive personnel management system
which is prepared (subject to geographical locations) in accordance
with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Labor law of the People’s Republic of China [ (R#E AR
HAMHLB)E) ), labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China ((FEARKMBELEEEE) ) and other applicable
laws, as well as indusiry practices. The system covers recruitment,
rank management, remuneration, training, confidentiality and other
areas. The Group ensures employees are clear about their own
rights and responsibilities as they will comply with the system and
carry out their work legally, in order to safeguard the interest of both
parties.

Employment

Although the Group has faced challenges from a downtrend
economic environment, the staff is willing to work with the Group
to tackle these unfavourable, adverse conditions. The Group has
established a policy to ensure that the rights of each staff member
are protected no matter the circumstances. The employment
contract of the Group specifies the terms including compensation
and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare for our staff. Every staff member of the Group has signed
the employment contract with the Group.

The promotion policies of the Group are based on the performance
of the relevant staff in their position on annual basis.
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Working hours, rest periods and leave paid

Five-day work arrangement is adopted to facilitate work-life balance.
In oddition fo all rest days and statutory holidays as specified in
local laws and regulations, employees are entitled to paid annual
leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves, marriage leaves and
compassionate leaves. Overtime work compensation is given fo
staff for doing overtime work.

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity

The Group actively promotes a diverse workplace where people
from diverse backgrounds are valued and respected. The Group
adopts equal employment opportunity policies and freats all the
employees equally. Employment, remuneration and promotion are
not under the influence of social identities, such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction
and marital status.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Management of the
Group did not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant
employment law and regulation in both Hong Kong and PRC.
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Workforce
distribution Percentage
AB o E Bt
Total number of staff ETHAE 23 100
Gender 14 5
Male S 15 65.2
Female gegiid 8 34.8
Ceographical region 1y P2 [iz 13
PRC B 15 65.2
Hong Kong B 8 34.8

Health and Safety

The health and safety of employees have always been the group's
priority of productions. To manage the chances for workplace
incidents and to highlight the importance of heal care of their
employees, the Group had established various guidelines and
policies. These had been included in their Staff Handbook, which
is distributed to employees and enforced by their line management
and human resource department. Majority of their mining workers
are employed through third party agency, the Group had sfipulated
these agencies to ensure that they place the similar, if not higher,
emphasis on the safety and health care of their employees.
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Every worker is required to follow safety instructions and to train for
using the equipment and/or machinery properly. A safety monitoring
mechanism has been established and staff in each of production
stage has been assigned to monitor the compliance of safety rules.

RIR-HBREISHRS

SUTABETERER LEEEBERER
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Occupational health and safety statistics 2018 Annudl 2017 Annudl
BERERZZ2HTHE 2018% 20174
Number of lost days due to work injury Nil Nil
AIGMERNIIERH Z =
Number of work-related fatalities due to work Nil Nil
RITERENIET AR =z =
Number of work injuries due o work Nil Nil
HI(EEENTEHE z z

The Management believes the Group has fully complied with law
and regulations regarding the health and safety requirements of the
business activities of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2018.

Development and Training

Management believes that keeping their employees up to date
with emerging trends and standards plays a fundamental role in
business growth. Therefore, the Group encourages employees to
continuously develop and improve their skill through training. The
Group understands that fraining could facilitate sustainable long-term
development, which is beneficial for both the Group and the
employees. The Group provides fraining for directors regarding the
Group's development and essential skills. The Group evaluates these
fraining programmes from fime to time and reviews ifs effectiveness.

The Group encourages communication between management
and employees, the Group respects and cares about employees’
opinions and suggestions.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to uphold the labour rights of staff and has
established a compliant mechanism for staff to report any labour
violations. The Management believes that the Group has complied
with relevant labour standards for the year ended 31 December
2018. It is always the group's policy to prohibit employment of staff
members under the legal working age of 18. During the year ended
31 December 2018, no labour disputes between the company and
its staff has been recorded.
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The Group adhere to the laws and regulations prohibiting child
labour and forced labour, which mainly include the following:

o Employment Ordinance of HKSAR
*  labor Llaw of the PRC (HZE A R MBI L &)%)

o labor Contract law of the PRC (RE AR KL EHE R
ED

° Llaw of the PRC on Protection of Minors {F ZE A R FHFE &
XFE AREE)

e Regulations on Prohibiting Use of Child Labor (State Council
Order No.364)

Supply chain management

The purchasing department will target suppliers with reputation
in industry, and then select through quotation comparison and
negotiation. The Group will also check the suppliers and their
purchasing price, examine and approve according fo effective
procedures in order fo prevent fraud. The Group will also consider
acquiring more environmentalfriendly machinery when the existing
machinery is no longer in use.

In selecting our contractors and equipment suppliers, we will
take info account various factors, such as (i) quality of services;
[ii) confracting costs; [(iii] safety management; and [iv] relevant
qualifications (if applicable). The Group requires contractors fo
maintain a high standard of quality for the services provided, and
to comply with and have in place adequate occupational health
and safety and environmental protection procedures in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and safety requirements
imposed by the relevant PRC government authorities.

All explosive activities are carried out by a reputable local supplier
which comply with government regulation during the year ended 31
December 2018. The Group does not foresee its source of supplies
fo be a potential threat to the group operation.
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Product Responsibility

The quality of products depends on the quality of the mine as the
Group has not further processed the beige marble blocks. The
Group facilitate customer on-site inspection and testing to ensure the
quality of the marble blocks are in line with their expectations. The
director believes that the Group has complied with relevant laws
and regulations related to the products of the Group.

During the reporting period of 2018, the Company did not receive
any complaints from customers about our products or services.

Anti-Corruption

With regards to compliance with relevant laws and regulations in
different regions, the group maintains a code of business integrity. A
system with good moral integrity and the anti-corruption mechanism
is the cornerstone for the sustainable and healthy development of
the group. The Group also prohibits staff from receiving gifts of
excessive amount from customers and suppliers. The Group fakes a
zero folerance approach to corruption and bribery and is committed
to acting professionally, fairly and with integrity in all our business
dealings. Any suspicious transactions would be notified and
reported to the relevant governing body by the responsible officer.

During the year ended 2018, no fraudulent practices has brought to
the Group's attention during the year.

Community Involvement

Contributing to society is a part of the Group's sustainable
development strategy. The Group is committed to providing career
opportunities to locals and promoting the development of the
community's economy. The Group fully understands and appreciates
the importance of and the need for community investment. One
remarkable aspect fully appreciated by the local community is that
most employees of the mine come from nearby villages. The Group
is committed fo developing more community investment opportunities
in its development plans. Through day-fo-day contact with community
officials and leaders, the Group explores and examines how the
Group can engage the community.
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The Board hereby presents its report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the mining, processing and frading of the
marble stones and marblerelated products. During the year, there
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities.

The principal activities of the Company's major subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 fo the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided
in the Chairman Statement on pages ¢ and 7 and Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 8 to 14 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are sef out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 63 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are sef ouf in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis fo existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders in accordance with the Company's
Byellaws are RMB38.7 million (31 December 2017: RMB138.0

million).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assefs and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years are set out on page 148 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Minliang (Chairman) (resigned on 12 September 2018)
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong

Mr. Zhang Wenjun

Mr. Zhang Mian (appointed on 4 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ma Ho Yin (resigned on 12 March 2018)

Ms. Wang Yihua

Mr. Sheng Guoliang

Mr. Yang Ruimin (appointed on 11 June 2018)
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RETIREMENT

In accordance with clause of the Company’s Byelaws, onethird of
the Directors for the time being shall refire from office by rofation
provided that every Director shall be subject to refirement at an
annual general meeting af least once every three years. A circular
containing the biographical details of the director candidates
eligible for re-election and the notice of annual general meefing will
be sent to the shareholders of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Company considers
all the independent non-executive Directors fo be independent.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a ferm of three years from the date of his/her
appointment. Such service contract can be determined by either
party serving at least one month’s notice prior fo the expiry of the
term.

None of the Directors (including any Director who may be proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting) has
entered into any service agreement with the Company which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at general meeting.
Other emoluments will be determined by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board with reference to the duties,
responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the
Group. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular review
and monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the
levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are sef out on pages 15 to 16 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in
Hong Kong and China, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject
to the profitability of the Group, the Group may also distribute
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group. The Group has adopted a share option
scheme for its employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Refirement Scheme”) organized by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC, under which the
Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll
of its employees to the Retirement Scheme. Save as disclosed
above, the Group has not operated any other refirement benefits
schemes for the Group's employees.
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed in the heading
“Share Option Scheme” in this report, none of the Directors had
any inferests and short positions of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")), which (a] were
required fo be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to provisions of Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
lincluding interests and short positions which the Directors have
taken or deemed fo have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) as sef out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquires such rights in any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, substantial shareholders' interests or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
interests of 5% or more, as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

F2 B2 e A 8 27 O B 2

MR2018F12A31H " EHRBARBREZBHF KL
B BB AT AT ENEERE
A X BERERAR ARG KA
Bfp M S AR (RVBEAS% R L)
T

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

underlying  Long/Short capital of

Name Capacity shares  position the Company

=R YN

BRITRAE

=% E87) HERGBE #HE KR Bt

Ninotre Investment Limited Beneficial Owner 304,966,082  long position 10.77%
Ninotre Investment Limited E=EAA Sy

Save as disclosed above, none of the Direcfors is aware of that any B EXFI#HBEEINN EHBAAGREBEEF K

person (not being Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company has also adopted a share option scheme on 24
January 2011 (the “2011 Option Scheme”). A summary of 2011

Option Scheme is set out below:

Purpose

The purpose of 2011 Option Scheme is to give the eligible persons
an opportunity fo have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate them to optimize their future performance and efficiency
to the Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions,
fo aftract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships
with such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to
enable the Group to affract and refain individuals with experience
and ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Participants of the scheme

The Board may grant options to any person being a director
(including independent non-executive director], employee,
shareholder, supplier, customer, consultant, business partner and
adviser of any member of the Company and their associates.
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Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2011 Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of the
Listing Date. Subject to as provided in the 2011 Option Scheme,
the Company may seek approval from its shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the 10% limit (not exceeding 10% of the
shares in issue of the Company as at the date of approval by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting) and grant options
beyond such 10% limit, but the total number of shares which may
be issued under 2011 Option Scheme and any other schemes of
the Group must not exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No option may be granted to any one eligible person such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month
period exceeds 1% of the number of shares in issue of the Company
from time to time. The Company may seek approval from its
shareholders in general meetfing to grant options fo the eligible
person exceeding 1% of the shares in issue of the Company in 12
month period up to and including the date of such further grant.

Period of the share to be taken up under an option
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance
by the eligible person concerned for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer upon payment of HK$ 1.0 for each grant of options.

Minimum holding period of an option

Subject to the terms and conditions in the 2011 Option Scheme,
the Board may determine there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and no performance
target which needs to be achieved by the grantee before the option
can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscripﬂon price in respect of any porﬂcu|or option shall be
such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion defermine at
the time of grant of the relevant option but the subscription price
shall not be less than whichever is highest of (1) the nominal value
of the shares; (2] the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and
(3) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days (as
defined in the listing Rules) immediately preceding the date of offer.
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Life of 2011 Option Scheme

The 2011

period of 10 years from the date of adoption.

Details of outstanding and movement of share options under 2011
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as

Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a

201 1 B R FERT BRI RR

B ZE2018F12A31HIEFE 201
BB TRTENBEREREZHNHFFN

I FREREFSSARABEPETIOF
HEAER RE -

14 B8 BX

follows: S
As at
Asat 1 Jonuary  Grant/(Lapsed) 31 December
Grantees Date of grant Exercise price 2018 during the year 2018
R2018% RER R2018%F
ABA Rt AH TfEE 1A1E BH/ (&%) 12A318
Directors
=
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei 26 June 2014 note 4 HK$1.737 1,731,663 - 1,731,663
REHZ T 2014567268 Pt x4 173747
12 January 2015 note 5 HK$1.649 2,424 329 - 2,424 329
201514128 x5 1.649% 7T
Employees
3=
Other employees 9 June 2014 note 3 HK$1.737 3,290,160 - 3,290,160
Hittg g 2014%6A98 it sE3 173747
26 June 2014 note 4 HK$1.737 1,731,663 S 1,731,663
2014567261 Pt 34 173787
30 December 2014 note 6 HK$1.634 4 848,657 - 4,848,657
2014F12A30H Mt zE6 1.634% 7T
12 January 2015 note 5 HK$1.649 2,424 329 - 2,424 329
201514128 x5 1.649% 7T
23 November 2017 note 7 HK$0.0972 47,200,000 - 47,200,000
2017F11 7236 MEzE7 0.0972%& 7T
Others
Hity
Former director and employee 4 November 2011 note 1,2 HK$7.967 1,350,697 - 1,350,697
MEERES 11E11A4R k1 -2 7967% T
65,001,498 - 65,001,498
Vested at end of period 65,001,498 65,001,498
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Note:

1. On 24 May 2012, the Board passed a resolution that these options shall
continue fo vest and be exercisable until the expiry of the option period
regardless of these grantees ceased fo be director or employee of the Company.

2. The options were divided info three tranches exercisable from 4 November

2011, 4 November 2012 and 4 November 2013 to 3 November 2021.

3. The options were exercisable from @ June 2014 to 8 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

4. The options were exercisable from 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

5. The options were exercisable from 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
(both dates inclusive).

6. The options were exercisable from 30 December 2014 to 18 December 2024
[both dates inclusive).

7. The options were exercisable from 23 November 2017 to 22 November 2027

(both dates inclusive).

8. The Company recorded the fair value of these share options as staff cost in the
income statement. The Company will record the nominal value of the shares
which is HK$0.01 per share issued pursuant fo the exercise price of the share
options as additional share capital and the Company will record the excess of
the exercise price of the share options over nominal value of the shares in its
share premium account. Any share options which has lapsed or been cancelled

will be deducted from the balance of the share options.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts with Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group,
to which the Company, its holding companies, its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or af any time during the year ended 31 December

2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up fo and
including the date of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the directors. Having made specific
enquiry to all the Directors, they confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are sef
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries or holding
company or subsidiary of the holding company has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year

ended 31 December 2018
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The shares of the Company were listed on 18 March 2011 on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Based on publicly available
information and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
during the year and up to the date of this report of directors under
the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Elite Partners
CPA limited who refire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which consists of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed with auditors in relation to the infernal
control and financial reporting matters of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Cuiwei
Executive Director

25 March, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R EsTEh¥RS

elite
= partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Members of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
{Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continved in Bermuda with

limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 63 to 147, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated  stafement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes fo the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the Infernational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ["HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

54 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

BHEEAREXZRERDAFIMCKRR
(REASHESFMATIRAREFENER
2 A])

=R
HMEEAENFESRIA/EFTRHEABEE
ZRBERAPREMBAR ([ERE]) 24K
M B®mE BENR2018F12A31B2&E
BBERAR BEZRIELFEZEERER
Htt2Hlak SGARaZ2HREEEH
ERER UREEMBRERME BREER
S BERBME-

BARR KAV BERIREBEBER G £R
Bre ((BRetERNEES ) BH2EHEK
MREER ([EREREER])EER
AFMRHRT ESEEMR2018F12A31H
ZEHEAMBRAANL BEEEEEZBLSF
EZHReEMBERARGARERNE YER
REABRAKGPIZEEREZRRE -

RRNER

BPCRBEETEGFMAS ([FEESER
) mMmzERBESTER ([FEEELL)
ETE - BRMAMNZFEANAENEEER
WE [ FADAFA AR B EHK AN E (T
MoFMA-REFESAMISN KBEXE
FHEPEE TR (AT AL - RFB
IR BEEE - YEEITTRIRNEMBIEE
BEE-RMAGE RMAMESZEHRER
ARLEEHWRBRMANETERIRHER-

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT 1% 7 &5 51 b ¥R <5

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

BRETER

REBRFPONEXZHE BREFFETEASRM
B HE2018F12A3 B EFEHRATH
BRIFREZNFTHE-ZMEFFEERS
MBRERMABETERERFREE L FEFER
MAERMEEFEREFBERER -

opinion thereon, and we do nof provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BRESFER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and

Y3 - BB R AR DA R SR T B E ORI (E FTAG

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB189,365,000
and a mining right classified as an infangible asset of
approximately RMB43,732,000 relating to the Group's
cash-generating unit regarding sale of marble and
marble-related products (the “CGU"). For the year ended
31 December 2018, no impairment loss had been
recognised on the Group's property, plant and equipment
and intangible asset respectively. Details are set out in
note 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
R2018F12A31H EEENYE BERKEL
/RAREE189,365 0007 MEDEAEN EE K KRIRE
R R/AREEAZ, 732,000 HRiERE EXEEH
HEARAORARARBERNREELEM (B
EXBA])AB -BZE2018F12A31B ILFE W&
# EEEOYE BEERBARETLEED BIBR
MERBE BEFEENGEMBRRME 17218 -

The Group had engaged an independent valuer to
assist the management of the Company in estimating
the recoverable amount of the CGU which requires
significant judgement to be made by the management of
the Company.

EEECZRE LB UEEMKGE EAREREY
Al BERREBREFLEARMEBNRcELEMNA
We Bl & B8 VF i fh FT o

FEESAREEZERERAF

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHWEANOEEZEE

intangible assets

Our procedures in relation to the management's
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible asset included the following:
BMAHEREEYYE BELARBAREBTLEED
MEFEOEFEEATEIEA:

- We obtained cash flow forecasts prepared by
the management of the Company and assessed
the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions used for the preparation of the
forecasts (e.g. estimated reserves of mineral, sales
volume, unit selling price, estimated expenses and
discount rate efc.).

- HBMEESGH E/AFEREREMNBSRER
A WEFERHRER (JIMGFRERE HE
B HEBEE HFAXEITEXRF)MAIIER
BRRHEE M-

- We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of an independent valuer and the method
used for estimating the recoverable amount of the
CGU.

- EMEFEBLAERMSS ® e REFEENU
Mt ReELEMAI LK S BB FE-
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Key Audit Matter
BEETSEE

We had identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets relating to
the CGU as a key audit matter because significant
management judgement was used in defermining key
assumptions.

ZMPEBHADE BEAIRBARERSELENLSE
MNETEENRENGR - HAREASTE RE
REEERHERRBREAFELEEHE-

Impairment assessment of the trade receivables

g 5 B W FOR 8RB TG

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB72 million net of
impairment. We had identified impairment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter because significant
judgements had to be made for the assessment of
impairment under the expected credit loss model.
R2018F12A31H  AEBEFRURBUORARY
72,000,0007T (#IkRIAME) - TP BB 8 5 W KIA
ZRESBEREFFE REA/EELEXHE AR
HEMEEBEELN T ZHE-
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNEANMEEZEE

- We discussed with the independent valuer
the appropriateness of the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating the recoverable
amount of the CGU and performed certain
procedures fo assess data and assumptions used by
the management and the valuer in estimating the
recoverable amount.

- BMESBUAEMIwGEFRESEEEMAIR
CE&BEAINTERBRNEE L LEHRT
ETRRFAEERRE R EMNEE ATIRE $ 5
Y PT R B S04 B R R

- We checked the mathematical accuracy of
calculation of the recoverable amount of the CGU.

- BMERERSELABEMAINESETETEN
HEERE -

QOur procedures in relation fo management's impairment
assessment of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2018 included:
HMEBR2018FI2ASIHEREYE FEIWRKE
FrEd B EN M REF2ENTSIE:

e Understanding and evaluating the key controls
that the Group has implemented to manage and
monitor ifs credit risk, and validating the control
effectiveness on a sample basis;

e THRIYFE EEEREELEEHEERRM
B i ) B S 47 T 15 il N e 5k B SRR I B B UM

e Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables as af 31 December 2018 fo
the underlying financial records and post yearend
setflements to bank receipts;

o BEAEEREMN2018FI12A31HBBEM KL
BANEZREENRKELRFEBROR
TTRRF & WIS
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Key Audit Matter
HEETSEE

Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency
of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different customers, ageing
of the trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent setflement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going frading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forwardlooking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.

EEEREBTRAZFLERRR B 5 RUIAN RE
BEGETH RELERN FAHRERRERGER
BHReRLEBETFOBERIBERSENYTES
JRE M5 R TR A BT ) 1 R E B e Y 3R R I 1T R AT
H-BEEECEEHEFPERRNABEGRNENE
RFEMAIEIEER  AEFHREFGNEREREREE -

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables under the expected credit
loss model involved the use of significant management
judgements and estimate.
BMPEINUEBDANEREEFERERTESE
WOk IE 2 BB AT (48 I 8 1 T P VE R I B B ik A
BE M e

Included in the Group's trade receivables was an amount
of approximately RMB10,352,000 which was due for
more than one year (the “Trade Receivables”). The Trade
Receivables were related to a single debtor and the
outstanding balance was secured by a property located
in Inner Mongolia (the “Property”). The management had
taken legal actions to recover the Trade Receivables and
the court in the PRC ruled that the Group had the right to
obtain ownership of the Property in the PRC.
EEENESRURREDTBE ZEHARE
10,352,0007T K 5RIE - s RIRC B BB —F ([ % &
ZRWFIR]) ZEHEWKIBR - RE—BBEAR
BmeREEERBUNARITH - EYEELER
(IZW%]) - EREEHWEZE S ERFAERIUE
BITY MPBEDERERE SEEEARRGEZTEY
EBERRE-

FEESAREEZERERAF

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNEANAEREZEE

*  Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as af
year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
understanding on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement records of and
other correspondence with the customers; and

e RNEREEAFAARFHABCAHNNSERES
FEURIAN RS AT BB IREEE R ENRE
IRBERHLHTHRETPNFEEBRE &
THEFPHNES RERAELHEIAMER: &

®  Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology, examining
the key data inputs on a sample basis fo assess
their accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

s HMAEHEERERENTERTAE BER
HEERETFERMABBUTEEREREERTE
THRANETRRAEEBEBRNAREL RATEME
BERORRIBLE R

For trade receivables secured by a property:

SLAMEER M Z %8 5 R IEN =

- We discussed with the management of the
Company relating to recoverability of the Trade
Receivables.

- B SERFEREENWAMZESEWKE
B AT g @ 1 o

- We discussed and assessed the valuation
method, source data and assumptions used by the
independent valuer o arrive af the markef value of
the Property.

S BRMmIT B L EMAERZENTE
IS ERE  REERRBER-
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Key Audit Matter
BEETSEE

The management appointed an independent valuer
to assess the market value of the Property and no
impairment loss of Trade Receivables was recognised
(2017: RMB3,445,000) in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Defails are set out in the
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
EREEZAE—RBUGEMIEZMENTE B
MREZE2018F12A31H IEFE 2B & A I 8 R Z
B 5 RKFIARBEER (2017F : AR¥3,445,000
) BRAHBERNGSMBHRRME23 -

We had identified the impairment assessment of the
tfrade receivables as a key audit matter because (i)
the Trade Receivables involved were significant and
significant management judgement required to determine
the recoverability of the amount, the market value of the
Property and hence the amount of impairment loss. (i)
the impairment assessment of frade receivables under
the expected credit losses model involved the use of
significant management judgements and estimates.
BPERAZE S EBFIENRENE R —BERET
FE RAEZESREREBESREBEX BAR
ZHENAIEE ZYEOTEARRESEESR
EHBEREREHE - (| BEHEEERARATHES
JE W R IR E 1T R E R R B R B EAHE &
fli&te
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNEANMEEZEE

- We evaluated the competence, capabilities
and objectivities of independent valuer that
was engaged by the Group to determine the
recoverable amount of the Property.

- BAFRX EEEZRBEEZVEAIRDOEE
MBYEEMNS B EHRFEIMK-

- We assessed the sufficiency of impairment loss
recognised by the Group taking into account
the market value of the Property and future costs
incurred fo obtain the Property.

- B ERZVENTERBRRGSZVESESE
MRA -4 BEXEBEMERNREBEETHEEE
HEF A -
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is moferio”y inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary fo enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no redlistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our obijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely fo you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
fo any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
froud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriafe fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

60  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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®  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisfs
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to confinue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncerfainty exisfts, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group fo cease to confinue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in o manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obfain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent B B W EF BB HEZ BB UEFTRED
auditor's report is Siu Jimmy with practising certificate number: B E A B AARBER HRUFXBBREH A

PO5898. PO5898 -

Elite Partners CPA Limited Mt EEgstMEEMRERAA
Certified Public Accountants HEEFED

10/F 8 Observatory Road, BE

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon NELRDPE

Hong Kong AX BE8HR1012

Hong Kong, 25 March 2019 B 20199F3H25H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FolEaNEMEANSE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #2201

8F12A31HIEFE

2018 2017
2018% 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ TR ARET T
REVENUE LON 7 67,719 31,383
Cost of sales HEK AR (63,170) (30,318)
Gross profit E A 4,549 1,065
Other income and gains H WA RIS 8 14,540 49,877
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEM B ARz W 566 =
Selling and distribution costs HE R DR AR (1,210) (385)
Impairment allowance of trade receivables 2 5 & Y 5% 18 R (B 15 5 Q (8,307) (3,445)
Administrative expenses TR (29,393) (39,038
Finance costs B 7 A AR 10 (15) (277)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BBA (EE) R 1 (19,270) 7797
Income tax FriS i 13 = -
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ARNAEEAELEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF (E|) T
THE COMPANY (19,270) 7797
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Ht2EBA (FE) :
ltems that may be reclassified HETREEHRIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BRMWIER:
Exchange differences on franslation of R E N EBEER
overseas operations R ER 10,633 (9,634
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ARNREBEAELFEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 2HEEEHE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (8,637) (1,837)
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BER (BB BA
(RMB cents) (ARWZ) 15
— Basic and diluted —EXK#E (0.7) 0.5

FEESAREEZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

el BiRRE

As at 31 December 2018 1201841283 1H

2018 2017
2018% 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® TR ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E Y & 17 189,365 202,027
Intangible assets mEE 18 43,732 43,732
Prepaid land lease payments TENT + 318 & FIE 19 1,253 1,287
Prepayment TEFFRIA 24(a) 51,642 -
285,992 247,046
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 369 3,028
Trade receivables B 5 e W IE 23 71,684 33,293
Prepayments, deposits and BAFE HE M
other receivables H {th i U 5008 24(b) 3,941 15,159
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEEY 26 65,058 168,613
141,052 220,093
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables 2 5 RN IR 27 1,814 1,920
Obligation under finance lease b &M E AR 28 233 396
Other payables and accruals ﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁ RIBNEETE R 29 19,264 13,952
Provision for litigation SRRABE R 30 1,200 37,500
22,511 53,768
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 118,541 166,325
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABERE
LIABILITIES 404,533 413,371
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #RE{1FSARIRZE

As at 31 December 2018 720184 12831H

2018 2017
2018% 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBEE
Obligation under finance lease BbE M E A E 28 - 201
Provision for rehabilitation EEREE 31 2,697 2,697
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 21 608 608
3,305 3,506
NET ASSETS EEFE 401,228 409,865
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of ARBEEAELER
the Company
Share capital f& A 32 24,435 24,435
Reserves & 33 376,793 385,430
Total equity RS 401,228 409,865

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 147 were HO63E147B MG M B MEE N2019F3 A
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25  25BEEFGH A RKETE LHTIINES

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: KEREZF:
Zhang Cuiwei Wang Yihua
RER TEE
Director Director
= =
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CUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SiEEENE

Foreign
currency
Issued Share  Contributed ~ Share opfion translation Retained

capital  premium* reserve” reserve* reserve™ Profits ~ Total equity

HEBRE
BRIRE  RORE* LARE BRERH" @B REER ags
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
At T January 2017 ®2017%1R18 3,883 = 14,480 24,485 (3,226) 129,754 169,376
Profit for the yeor FE&F = = = = - 7,797 7,797
Exchange difference on translation of overseas operations RREENEBELNERZE = = = = (9,634) = 9,634
Total comprehensive loss rHFEAE - - - - 9,634 7,797 1,837)
Grant of share opfions Rl EAE - = = 630 = = 630
Rights issue of shares HRETRS 20,552 221,144 - - - - 241,696
Total transactions with owners BEFARSEE 20,552 221,144 - 630 - - 242,326
At 31 December 2017 #2017412R318 24,435 221,144 14,480 25,115 [12,860) 137,551 409,865
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - - (192700 (19,270)
Exchange difference on translation of overseas operations RAEENEBELMER 2R = - - - 10,633 - 10,633
Total comprehensive loss rEEREE - - - - 10,633 (19,270) 8,637)
At 31 December 2018 201845124318 24,435 221,144 14,480 25,115 (2,227) 118,281 401,228

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the consolidated — * ZERERECEGEAVBHARRNGAHE-

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HelREREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #2201

8F12A31HIEFE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHMBHRERE
(Loss)/Profit before tax BREAT (BE) & F (19,270) 7,797
Adjustments for: HATRBEELFE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME- BB LRETE 13,142 9,861
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TE A 4 3t 16 & FTE 4 8 34 34
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE - WE R&ZEZ
&8 1,848 1,885
Impairment of trade receivables 2 5 EWRIERE 8,307 3,445
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEMB AR Z K= (566) =
Reversal of impairment of other receivables H th & Y R IERU(E i [ = (2,500)
Deferred income PEIE U A = (102)
Provision for litigation FREA B - 37,500
Inferest on bank/other loans RI17/HAMERFE 15 28
Interest income AEMA (1) (120)
Share-based payments expenses ARG AER 2 A RAX - 630
Reversal of provision for litigation SFEARE R D (14,500) (82,358
Operating loss before working capital changes EEEREPNZ
KEEE (10,991) (23,200)
Change in prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE }ﬁ/i\&
receivables H b fE W R IE & B 11,895 (3,523)
Change in inventories FEEH 2,684 (1,957)
Change in trade receivables 25U FRIEE B (45,456) (14,517)
Change in trade payables BHRNFIEES (106) (7,649)
Change in other payables and accruals H b & 5 FRIE &
et B REE 5,689 (32,578
Payment for litigation & R FRIR (21,800) =
Net cash flows used in operating activities RETBHFFARERE
P (58,085) (84,124)

FEESAREEZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS G IRENSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHMEBRERE
Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment  HEE 1% W FE LR HIE B (2,812) (19,578)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME BENMRBZ

equipment PSR 339 16
Interest received 2 WA E 1 120
Refund for deposit paid for acquisition EﬁqﬁlﬁﬁﬁziLTA - 31,332
Proceed from disposal of subsidiary HE M B R R AT IR 599 =
Prepayment for purchase of property WM BEME&EEZ

plant and equipment FafRIA (51,642) =
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from RETES (FTA) s

investing activities ReRERE (53,515) 1,890
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETHMERSRE
Proceeds from interest-bearing loans FEERMERIEA - =
Repayment of interest-bearing loans TEERER - (358)
Proceeds of obligation under finance lease A& B E ARG FIE - 489
Repayments of obligation under finance lease MEHEREERK (396) (398)
Interest paid ERFE (15) (28)
Rights issue AR - 241,696
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from METE (FTA) s

financing activities RERETFHE (417) 241,401
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%{“%%

CASH EQUIVALENTS W) (112,011) 169,167
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year i%ﬂfﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁwﬁ% 168,613 7,198
Net foreign exchange difference EHZEZEEH 8,456 (7.752)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREECRAELEZEY 65,058 168,613
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND REeERBEeZEYHESR

CASH EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITHE S 65,058 168,613
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NOTES TO0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 ¥R 2R P 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z2018F12A31H IEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the "Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and sale of marble
and marble related products, mainly in China. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands under the
name of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Llimited on 29
March 2010 and changed its domicile to Bermuda with
limited liability on 10 August 2016. The registered office
address of the Company is Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Homilton HM12, Bermuda. The principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong is located at Units 6812 to
6813, The Center, 99 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 March
2011.

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

FEESAREEZERERAF

—BE R
FESERERBRERAR ([KAF])
REMBAR (RBEIFAEE)IEE
FENEAEARAEEABEQNE
ERHE -FN AEBETEHOEE
VWEALE

R2010F3 82908 A Al REM S B
EEME22E R RE (19614F B35 %
B 45 e RIERT)  RNEASHSFTMK
VYEAEREERAG  RAEBAYH
CABBEZERERRAWLNR201658 A
IOBE XN EFMBAERELIES
ERARGFE- ARRIMNTMMNER M
3 & Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda e KA G H &
BEEEEMUMURBEBERFRKREFO?
FARIRADO812E6813F -

KRB ZBRMHBE2011FEIAI8HERE
BBMaXSAAERAR (MBRAM]) L
F‘ﬁo

BRBEBIN WLFMBERERAFREA
RE(TARK]) 25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise sfated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
["IFRSs"), which include all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IAS”) and interpretations, and applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinances and applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities (the “listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the hisforical cost convention.

70 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continved)
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and ifs subsidiaries made up fo
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has confrol. The Group controls an enfity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that

significantly affect the entity’s refurns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, fo defermine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date the control ceases.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is also attributed to the owners of the

Company.

Intra-group fransactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
fransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
fransferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation

2.

72

(a)

(6]

(c]

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the enfity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which
is the functional currency of the principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are franslated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
Company's presentation currency are franslated into the
Company's presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are franslated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i)  Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevoihng on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are franslated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency franslation reserve.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Translation on consolidation (Continved)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the franslation of the net investment in foreign entfities
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on

disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated af cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for ifs intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate assef, as appropriafe, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BHEREFIEORMEE o

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continved)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than mining infrastructure,
over their esfimated useful lives and after taking into account
of their estimated residual value, using the straightline method.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are

as follows:

Buildings 10 - 20 vears
Plant and machinery 5 =15 years
Office equipment 5 vyears

leasehold improvement Over the lease term

Motor vehicles 4 - 10 years

Depreciafion of mining infrastructure is calculated using the
Units of Production ("UOP") method to write off the cost of the
assets.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents items of property, p|ont
and equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use. Depreciation of these assefs, on the same
basis as other property, plant and equipment, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

74 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continved)

Stripping costs

Stripping costs incurred during the production phase are
generally considered to create two benefits, being either the
production of inventory or improved access fo the ore fo be
mined in the future. Where the benefits are realised in the form
of inventory produced in the period, the production stripping
costs are accounted for as part of the cost of producing those
inventories.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of improved access
to ore to be mined in the future, the costs are recognised as
a stripping activity asset and is accounted for as an addition
to, or an enhancement of, the ‘Mining Infrastructure’ in the
statement of financial position if the following criteria are met:

[a) it is probable that the future economic benefit (improved
access to the ore body) associated with the stripping
activity will flow to the entfity;

(b)  the entity can identify the component of the ore body for
which access has been improved; and

(c) the costs re|ofing to the stripping activity associated with
that component can be measured reliably.

Other production stripping costs are charged to the profit or
loss as operating costs as they are incurred.

The stripping activity asset is initially measured at cost, which
is the accumulation of costs directly incurred to perform
the stripping acfivity that improves access to the identified
component of ore, plus an allocation of directly attributable
overhead costs.

If the costs of the inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset are not separately identifiable, a relevant production
measure is used fo allocate the production stripping costs
between the inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset. This production measure is calculated for the identified
component of the ore body and is used as a benchmark to
identify the extent to which the additional activity of creating
a future benefit has taken place. The Group uses the expected
volume of waste extracted compared with the actual volume
for a given volume of ore production of each component.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)
Stripping costs (Continued)

The stripping activity assef is subsequently depreciated using
the UOP basis over the life of the identified component of

HREIFBORME »

HIBRRA ()

R EHEEHRZEESENHEE &
AFRFHMESEZEAND FHAE
SEMoAEFRANETITE - FEE
HEEHBUKARTE MEMBEE
B ER -

PRUEE

PR AR 1R AN OB R R 8 R RUE B
BIR - XBEECLRKRBRBEFITER
A RETHEVEAGRXLER
IREBRAREENEENBRRTG
A ARBBREBEMENRE
ERGORA - REENEEEMER
BEEHERMNEEAIMBELUNEER
K BE RS o & IOTE L RO (R FT AT 2 B AR B
TLREH - HEXMERRTE QKRB
REEmRAME-

the ore body that became more accessible as a result of the
stripping activity. The stripping activity asset is then carried at
cost less depreciation and any impairment losses.

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortization
and any impairment losses. Mining rights include the cost
of acquiring mining licenses, exploration and evaluation
costs transferred from exploration rights and assets upon
determination that an exploration property is capable of
commercial production, and the cost of acquiring inferests in
the mining reserves of existing mining properties. The mining
rights are amortised over the estimated useful lives of the
mines, in accordance with the production plans of the entities
concerned and the proved and probable reserves of the mines
using the UOP method. Mining rights are written off to profit
or loss if the mining property is abandoned.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Operating leases

HE
HEEMEREEA

TEAAKEEELEEREGRZZHA
OB ELEERHEEARASLE
LHE -HE (HHREEARENERE
BIREHANEREZERARAX

leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assefs are accounted for
as operating leases. lease payments [net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straightline basis over the lease term.

BEHE

BEMBEZE2NAREORES -8
BEAKEZHEE I RBEHE-BE
HMEAHPHRARRREEEEZAAE
AeEBEEERERE(MEHREER

g ]

asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments, REETE) cBREEERL-

Finance leases

leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assefs are accounted for as finance
leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance
lease is capitalised af the lower of the fair value of the leased

each determined at the inception of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FERE&FBURMZE )
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued) *HE (%)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBEHEABEA (8)
Finance leases (Continved) HEHE (&)
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the HHEAAKEZHEEG BRI B RE
statement of financial position as finance lease payable. lease HRIEREN R EMRE -1 & RIBIE LA
payments are apportioned between the finance charge and SPELSMBERARABAENEBE Y
the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge BERESHBANYE LABEHRSTE
is allocated to each period during the lease ferm so as fo SHE—EEBZEHAE-
produce a constant periodic rafe of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.
Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as RRMEHETEERBEEERKRE
owned assefs over the shorter of the lease term. REHHAENE -
The Group as lessor REBEFEAHEA
Operating leases HWEHE
leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the WHERRAABAEHEERAE 2 2R
risks and rewards of ownership of assefs are accounted for koK EEEELHERARRK
as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is EHE-KEHECHS B AREEMR
recognised on a straightline basis over the ferm of the relevant HAABEBREER -
lease.
Inventories A

FEUARAERATBZRFEMET 2R
BEEIIRR -RANEAMEFHEEETE -
M RABRERMH EERITE M
P ZEZHREFEEERUALDBE
B(EER) AR FEIATERE
e 2 i 5t & (B 14 &t 52 BB AR B fil &1
& P 7 B A o

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct
labour and proportion of all production overhead expenditure,
and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of complefion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party fo the confractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assefs are recognised and derecognised on a frade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15 during the Track Record Period. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assefs or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly atiributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
lincluding all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognifion.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinved)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is fo collect contractual cash flows; and

e the confractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount oufstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling; and

e the confractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), except that at the dafe
of initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 “Business

Combinations” applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continved)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and calculated by applying the effective
interest rate fo the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assefs that have subsequently
become creditimpaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period.

If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assefs at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
eamed on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Confinved)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses ["ECL") on financial assets which are subject

s
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fo impairment under IFRS 9@ [including trade and other
receivables, other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting dates to reflect changes in credit risk since inifial
recognition.
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Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible

of lifetime ECL that is expected fo result from default events
that are possible within 12 months affer each reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assefs are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances.
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For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Financial assets (Continued)

2.

82

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at each reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
infernal credit rafing;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

®  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
fo cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

®  an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

®  an actual or expected significant adverse change

in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinved)

2.

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(i)

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate fo ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For infernal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than Q0 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)

2.

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(iii)

(iv)

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more
events of default that have a defrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
creditimpaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) o breach of confract, such as a default or past due

event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s] that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

le] the disappearance of an acfive market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continved

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2.

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

[iv

(v)

Write-off policy (Continued)

Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a de recognition
event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
defermined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate defermined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the following basis:

®  Nature of financial instruments [i.e. the Group's
trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables and amounts due from customers are
each assessed as a separate group. loans fo
related parties are assessed for expected credit
losses on an individual basis):
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

[v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL [Continued)
o Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e External credit ratings where available.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case inferest income is
calculated based on amortized cost of the financial
asset.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue fo share
similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity affer deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
amounts due to the Controlling Equity Holders are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rafe is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
fransaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer setlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Government grants

Government granfs are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intfended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
installments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continved)

Revenue recognition

Revenue (net of value added tax or other sales taxes) from the
sale of goods is recognised at a particular point in time when
customers have control over the promised goods, which is
generally the time when goods are delivered to customers and
customers have accepted the goods.

[a)  Revenue from sale of marble and marble related products
are recognised at a particular point in time. This is the
time when legal assignment is completed which is the
time when the customer has ability to direct the use of
the goods and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of the goods.

[b) Interest income are recognised as it accrues using the
effective inferest method. For financial assefs measured
at amortised cost that are not creditimpaired, the
effective interest rafe is applied fo the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For creditimpaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost.
li.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
net asset.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group contfributes to a defined confribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fu||\/ with the emp|oyees when contributed in

the MPF Scheme.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continved)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People's Republic of China ("PRC") are required to
participate in a cenfral pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
fo confribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The confributions are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Share-based employee compensation
The Group operates equity-seffled share-based compensation
plans for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of
any share-based compensation are measured at their fair
values. These are indirectly defermined by reference to the
equity instruments awarded. The value is appraised at the
grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continved)

Share-based employee compensation (Continved)
All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense
in profit or loss with a corresponding credit to employee
share-based compensation reserve, net of deferred tax where
applicable. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply,
the expense is recognised over the vesting period, based on
the best available estimate of the number of share options
expected fo vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised,
it there is any indication that the number of share options
expected fo vest differs from previous estimates. No adjustment
fo expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in employee share-based compensation
reserve will be fransferred to share premium. When the vested
share opfions are lapsed, forfeited or sfill not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in employee
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
refained profifs.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assefs that necessarily take a substantial period of fime to get
ready for their infended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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2.

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs (Coninved)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capifalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes itfems of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never faxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tox rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred fax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assefs
are recognised fo the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition [other than in a business combination) of other
assefs and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continved)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
nof reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is setfled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates fo items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred fax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, af the end of the reporting period,
to recover or sefle the carrying amount of its assefs and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group infends fo
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group.

[a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
[i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BHEREFIEORMEE o
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continved) BEAL @)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) & & T 54X 0] 5k 14 - B1 & 88 B2 K
conditions applies: SEFARE

()  The entity and the Company are members of (i) ZEBEAQFTABR —%
the same group (which means that each parent, ZHRERA (A& AAE K
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the BRARKEZRNEB R R KU
others). MAEBE) -

[ij  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —AEBARS—ERBMNEZL
other entity [or an associate or joint venture of a AXAEELR (XS —ERER
member of a group of which the other enfity is a KERAZEBEETKER
member). RAIZBERNRIHNEERE)-

[iii) Both enfities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEBHAR—F=7H
party. B

[iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (iv] " HERBAE=ZFEBNAE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. B M —BRR/RZF=

TEBOBE QR -

(v  The enfity is a postemployment benefit plan for v] BEBARASEXEAEEER
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an MEZERREENARY
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself B B B AR A AT B o i AR R B AKX
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also HEE%E TxE@EéSﬁjJEI'JE
related to the Group. TIREAEEFRE

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi)] BB X (a)Fraal AL Hlsk
person identified in (al. AR o

(viij A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) A (a)li) T Bl A L 3 & 88
influence over the entity or is a member of the key EAXENXBZE ﬁg (k%
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ERONEBRARIEETEEK
of the entity). g8

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (viii) ERBSXEFBE BN T ﬂﬁX
it is a part, provides key management personnel BRAIMERERNZ
services fo the reporting entity or to the parent of BeBRFARHBARTE f@ /\
the reporting entity. R -
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of the Group's
various lines of business in different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of productions
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounfs of its fangible and infangible assefs, to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assefs are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be idenfified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present
value using a prettax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific
fo the assef for which the esftimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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2.

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generafing unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,

amount that would have been determined [net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required fo seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risk and uncerfainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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3. APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED 5

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs and a new
interpretation that are mandatorily effective for
the current year ended 31 December 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of new
standards and inferpretation issued by the International Institute
of Certified Public Accountants for the first fime of which the
followings are relevant to the Group's consolidated financial
statements:

e RS 9 Financial Instruments lincluding the amendments
to IFRS 9@ Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation which is mandatorily effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019);

. IFRS 15 Revenve from Contracts with Customers and
amendments to IFRS 15; and

e IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration.

Other than the amendments to IFRS @ as described above,
the Group has not early applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet mandatorily effective for the current
year.
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3. APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Confinved)

New and amendments to IFRSs and a new
interpretation that are mandatorily effective
for the current year ended 31 December 2018
(Continued)

VB FHI 5 T B 8B T 1B i S 5 ¥ o8
e Q) (11 B B 2 e o B R ) o)

BE2018F12A31BLAFER
Bl 4 24 R BB PR Bt S R R 2
FT BRI RAB T AN R H7R] 2 %8 ()

Al

Application of IFRS 9

IFRS @ and the amendments to IFRS @ have replaced 1AS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
IFRS @ sefs out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assefs, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell nonfinancial items. In accordance
with the specific transitional provisions set out in
IFRS @, the Group has applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including requirements relafing
fo impairment) fo items that existed as of the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2018) on a retrospective
basis based on the facts and circumstances and business
models that existed as at 1 January 2018. However, the
Group has decided not fo restate the comparative figures.
Accordingly, the comparative information continues to
be presented based on the requirements of IAS 39 and
hence may not be comparable with the current year
information. The cumulative effect of initial opp|icoﬂon
of IFRS @ has been recognised as adjustments to the
opening equity as of 1 January 2018.

(I} Classification and measurement of financial assets
In general, IFRS 9@ categories financial assets into
the following three classification categories:

Al
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e fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
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3. APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED 5

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (NIFRSSN) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs and a new

interpretation that are mandatorily effective

for the current year ended 31 December 2018

(Continued)

A)  Application of IFRS 9 (Continved)

(] Classification and measurement of financial assets

(Continved)
These classification categories are different
from those set out in IAS 39 which included
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVTPL. The classification
of financial assets under IFRS 9@ is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset at FVTPL at 1 January 2018.

There were no reclassification and remeasurement
on the Group's financial assefs existed as of 1
January 2018 due to application of IFRS 9.
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3. APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED 3. MERMTAT B AR MG T I Bt B 25 e
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING e (T 1 Bt A 2 e o e JL ) o)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Confinued)

New and amendments to IFRSs and a new HZ2018F12A31HLAFER
interpretation that are mandatorily effective Il A R B B R B R R S 2 B 2 R
for the current year ended 31 December 2018 AT BRI RIET AR T2 ()
(Continued)
A)  Application of IFRS 9 (Continved) A FEREBRMB®REZERNER (@)
M) Impairment (/7
IFRS @ has introduced the “expected credit loss B R B 7% R 5 £ B S 95% 3l A
model” to replace the “incurred loss” model under [TEHEEEBREN ] ARKE
IAS 39. The “expected credit loss model” requires RERTERIFEIRTHIEE
an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated AEEIEX - [BHEEEE
with a financial asset. The Group has applied the BRI EENIEH
"expected loss model” to the following types of EERRFEFTE-AEEE
financial assets: AITESREEER] RATER
e financial assets that are subsequently e HRERRBHENAAEND
measured at amortised cost (including cash BREE(REREERS
and cash equivalents, trade and other LZEY - BEHNMEMER
receivables); KIE)
The adoption of expected credit loss model had KMEBMEEEREREASR
a negligible impact on the carrying amount of the EemMEERBEEKNITE
Group's finance assefs. A AW AEt e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continved)

New and amendments to IFRSs and a new
interpretation that are mandatorily effective
for the current year ended 31 December 2018

3.

(Continued)

A)  Application of IFRS 9 (Continved)

()

(v)

(v

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

Under IFRS 9, for a financial liability designated as
at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is required to be
presented in other comprehensive income, with
the remaining amount of change in the fair value
of the liability being presented in profit or loss
(unless the treatment of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss and in which
case all gains or loss on that liability are presented
in profit or loss).

The adoption of IFRS @ has not had a significant
effect on the Group's financial liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The Group has not applied any hedge accounting
and hence the new general hedge accounting
model set out in IFRS 9 has not had any impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Effect on the Group's refained earnings and other
reserves as of 1 January 2018

The application of IFRS @ has not had any material
impact on the Group's refained eamings and other
equity components as of 1 January 2018.

FEESAREEZERERAF

VB FH 5 T B 8 AE W 1Bl B S 5 i o
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(1)

(v)

(V)
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3. APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Confinved)

New and amendments to IFRSs and a new
interpretation that are mandatorily effective
for the current year ended 31 December 2018

VB FHI 5 T B 8B T 1B i S 5 ¥ o8
e Q) (11 B B 2 e o B R ) o)

BE2018F12A31BLAFER
Bl 4 24 R BB PR Bt S R R 2
FT BRI RAB T AN R H7R] 2 %8 ()

(Continued)

B)  Application of IFRS 15 B) EABEMRIMBHEEAEISR
IFRS 15 has replaced IAS 11 Construction K’ B 75 ¥ &5 42 R 281 55% BUAX B B
Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and other revenue-related FTERIEINREESL BEES
interpretations. Under IAS 11 and IAS 18, revenue /Eﬁ'J 1855 U = B HoAth U 25 48 B 22

B RBEBBR S ERIE 5 REER
BEEAFE 18 BES O RIBHR
TEPTEE £ 2 W as BE s fHI BE SR - T 8H &
EmEUEBERERMBER
% & 3R T &2 5 0 R B R o

RBERMBRELELE155 K

REPMBEANPEFENE R KR
BRGNS ER -GS E — 8

arising from construction contracts and provision of
services was recognised over fime whereas revenue
from sale of goods was generally recognised at a point
in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods was passed fo the customers. Under IFRS 15,
revenue is recognised when the customer obtains control
of the promised good or service in the confract. This
may be at a single poinf in time or over fime. IFRS 15

has introduced additional qualitative and  quantitative R RS BE R AR - BIFR B S s
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the AR %6 55}“% 3l A H AL E M K EEH
financial statements to understand the nature, amount, ERT BESYBRRFEAEERR
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising 8 g}g HWEENBRRRBESRE

from contracts with customers. MtEE ¢ BEERTETEE-

REBEBERSERE LB ST

Based on the specific transitional provisions sef out in

IFRS 15, the Group had decided to use the cumulative
effect transition method and had recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application of IFRS 15 as
an adjustment to the opening balance of equity as at
1 January 2018).
Accordingly, comparative information has not been

the date of initial application (i.e.

restated and continves fo be presented under IAS 11
and IAS 18. Also, the Group has applied the IFRS 15
requirements only fo confracts that were not completed
before 1 January 2018.

As mentioned in Note 3, the Group is engaged sale of
marble and marble related products.

Management has assessed the impact and concluded
that the application of IFRS 15 has not had any material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

3.

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continved)

New and amendments to IFRSs and a new

interpretation that are mandatorily effective

for the current year ended 31 December 2018

(Continued)

C)  Application of IFRIC 22
IFRIC 22 provides guidance on determining “the date
of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate fo use on initial recognition of the related
assef, expense or income (or part of if] arising from o
fransaction in which an enfity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The interpretation
clarifies that “the dafe of the transaction” is the date
on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The application of IFRIC 22
has not had any material impact on the consolidated
financial position and the consolidated financial result.

New and revised standards, interpretations and
amendments issued but not yet effective

The Group has not applied any of the following new and
revised IFRSs that are relevant fo the Group that have been
issued but are not yet mandatorily effective:

Leases'

IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IAS 28  long-ferm Inferest in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRS

Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

IFRIC Interpretation 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined

HE S AREERARA T

VB FH 5 T B 8 AE W 1Bl B S 5 i o
AR (11 B B 2 e i Y 1 ) o)

BE2018F12A31HIERFER
Bl 4 24 R BB PR Bt B R R 2
A EARET AR R )

Q)

ERERMERERBEEFE22R
BRMERE2RBREEE22%RR
BEIRZABIREEATIHES  BH
RFETEE R AIMEWE S MR
BRXZPVIAEREBEE <
A (HE PR ) B R AYE R -
ZnEEL IR AH] RERAXA
SWBMEMNREMEENFEEEE
ESREMYVIEHER A M- R
RERAEE A A % 2 AR
BRARNERTARESERIAX
[ ER A 2 5 B B o 2R A B R B 75
BERBREBEQFQ2RYEAYB
MATNGE AV BRELBEATE -

C MR E 1 R £ Rz # 5T R &S
AR RERETE
AEEWEER T ERNEESE B ZAEM
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ZEATX Ed-E
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BRM SRS R 20155F201758H2
EHIEN BERMBREENFE
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Management are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(a)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group defermines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the hisforical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018412431 H IEFE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinued)

4.

(6]

(c)

Impairment of tangible and infangible assets

The Group assesses each cash-generating unit annually
to deftermine whether any indication of impairment
exists. When an indicator of impairment exists, a formal
estimate of the recoverable amount is made, which is
considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. The carrying amount of
the property, plant and equipment, including mining
infrastructure, and mining rights, are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in the relevant part of this section. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group fo estimate future
cash flows from the cash generating units and to choose
a suitable discount rafe in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Mine reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group's mine reserves are
inherently imprecise and represent only approximate
amounts because of the significant judgments involved
in developing such information. There are authoritative
guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that
have to be met before estimated mine reserves can
be designated as “proved” and “probable”. Proved
and probable mine reserve estimates are updated af
regular infervals taking into account recent production
and technical information about each mine. In addition,
as prices and cost levels change from year to vear,
the estimate of proved and probable mine reserves
also changes. This change is considered a change in
estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected on a
prospective basis in both depreciation and amortisation
rates calculated on a UOP basis and the time period for
discounting the rehabilitation provision. Changes in the
estimate of mine reserves are also taken info account in
impairment assessments of non-current assefs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY  (Confinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinued)

4.

(d]

(e

(1)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group's trade receivables and confract assets are
assessed for impairment based on the expected loss
model required by IFRS 9. The assessment made by
management has faken into account relevant hisforical
information adjusted for forward looking information
available to management at the date of assessment
(to the extent that such information is reasonable and
supportable without undue cost or effort). Impairment
losses are also recognised for the current year (please
see Nofes 23). Management has exercised judgment
in estimating the amount of expected credit loss. If the
actual outcome is different from management's estimate,
an additional impairment loss or reversal of impairment
loss may arise.

Provisions for rehabilitation

Provision for rehabilitation is measured in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations applicable in the
PRC at the end of the reporting period, and using the
cash flows estimated to seftle the present obligation. s
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
[where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Provision for litigation

Provision for litigation is measured in accordance with
the legal opinion and relevant laws and regulation
applicable in Hong Kong at the end of the reporting
period, and using the cash flows estimated to setile the
present value of those cash flows.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation

of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the Group
consist of debt which includes equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate actions
to adjust the Group's capital structure. The Group's overall

strategy remains unchanged from prior periods.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and
bank balances, trade and other receivables. Financial
liabilities of the Group mainly include trade payables, other

payables and interest-bearing loans.

Risk management is carried out by the finance department
which is led by the Group's executive directors. The Group's
finance department identifies and evaluates financial risks in
close cooperation with the Group's operating units. The main
risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are liquidity

risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk.

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure
that adequate resources are available to manage the above
risks and to create value for its shareholders. The board
regularly reviews these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

B A e o A

AEBEREEN UHBRASEEZE
BRANSEEELLE W EBE(E
BRERBZ FE SRETREAD
3 o

RBERE AEE2EXARBEREH
ARARBEBEANEEEDZ (HEBED#T
BARR R AR ZER - EREEHREMN
EARB-ERUERZ MO EFZE
BEAKRALRBBERR YL ERIEES
THNAHAEE 2 ERARBE - BT
HIRAL AEE2BERB DAL

St 5 e o A B B R SR

AEENEMEETZRRAS LR
R BHREMBKRFE - AEENS
REBTIEERRBESEMNKE HME
R R B|RITER

AEBEMEBERTEETNESTET
RBREE-AEEMBHELAEELE
MARZEAE A BRB R HEH B R
R-AEBeRMIAMELANTIZRAR
BERDUERR MEXER FERRBRE
S8 =L B o

REBENMBEREERE G ABRA
RMERER L AR A BRA R
BE-FECTHHEXSAR LG
m

() ERMITAEZDE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETF T
Financial assefs: TREE:
Lloans and receivables BERRERFIE (B
(including cash and cash equivalents) HeRBRSEEY) 137,485 206,363
Financial liabilities: TREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B#IEKAFTERN
cREE 21,311 16,375
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

6.

(b)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant-bearing assefs and
liabilities. The Group's income, expenses and operating
cash flows were substanfially independent of changes
in market inferest rates. Fluctuation of market rate does
not have significant impact to operating cash flows
accordingly no sensitivity analysis has been presented.

Credit risk

Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are held in major reputable financial
institutions located in the PRC and Hong Kong, which
management believes are of high credit quality. The
credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise trade receivables and other receivables
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal fo the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group has no other financial assets
which carry significant exposure to credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credi’r I’iSk (Continued)

6.

The Group sells most of the products to a small number
of customers in the marble distributors. As a result, it
faces a high level of concentration of credit risk. The
Group manages this risk by offering standardised
credit terms to its customers of marble products for
an approved credit term of 90 days. Some major
customers which have long relationship with the Group
were granted for a longer payment term. The Group
maintains sfrict control over its outstanding receivables
and senior management regularly reviews the overdue
balances. In addition, the Group's exposure to credit
risk is also influenced by the individual characteristics of
each customer and default risk of the industry in which
customers operate.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 42%
(2017: 44%) of the total trade receivables was due from
a single customer within the sales of marble and marble
related product segment.

This customer is a privately owned property developer in
the PRC with whom the Group had trading relationship
over the past few years.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of
funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows
from operations. The Group's objective is to maintain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interestbearing loans and its own
funding sources.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) LIqUICIIfy risk (Continued) (e)
The Group's financial liabilities have contractual
maturities as follows:

Ko 75 Rl e 7 P H AR R BLOR ()

REBELRERE 2
AEEMNEMEBEBSULNTAELOEH
2 B R HA R -

2018 2017
2018%F 2017%
Maturity Analysis - undiscounted cash outflows Maturity Analysis = undiscounted cash outflows

HBHBRAN - RAERASRLE IHBMBRAN - RERRERLR

Less than Less than
1 year Between Between 1 year Between Between
oron 1and 2 2and 5 or on 1 and 2 2and 5
demand years years Total demand years years Total
FRIE TRIF
i34 122%F 285% agt EE 1224 255% @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTR ARMTR AREBTR ARBTT ARETT ARETR AR%Tx
Trade payable BHRMAHE 1,814 - 1,814 587 1,333 = 1,920
Other payable Hi R TR 19,264 - 19,264 13,952 - - 13,952
Obligation under finance lease RERERE 233 - 233 410 204 - 614
21,311 - 21,311 14,949 1,587 - 16,486
(f) Fair value fh 2anE

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time and are based on relevant market information
and information about the financial
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve

instruments.

uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and
therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

For financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements
are categorised info level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted] in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

ARE/BFTIREEREFEL L
REBETZENRERTANE
HEd - ZEFHABETEMEE I
R R KB EE K H B H
FHOBELIEERBET -BRNE
BRKEEEATEZRSMHT-

R BREME 2 BEFERE
BABRBHAAEAEZANERE
ERBABBHRIAEAERR L
BEEMSRE 2/IF - WH
LIRS

s FIRBWABRBREBNGE
AR EEXBERA
BTMERBZHRE (KK

B):

~

%

e level 2 inputs are inputs, ofher than quoted prices e FE2RWMABBAREIRME
included within Level 1, that are observable for the SEZMEUIN REEREE
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and AHEEIREBRE 28 AH

B R

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset s ZFIBABBREEXERE

or liability. ZTABERARIE-
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S 5 e o A L R R BOR )

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Fair VCIer (Continued) (f) L\\fcﬁ (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assefs REEEMBRRRARRAER 2
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated TREERESRABCREEHRER
statement of financial position approximate their EEBZARERE-
respective fair values.
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION WA K 43 R
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net WAKDEERHNFERZE HBRESH

of trade discounts and returns and various types of government
surcharges, where applicable.

The Group's revenue and confribution to profit were mainly
derived from ifs sale of marble and marble related products,
which is regarded as a single operafing segment in a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group's senior management for purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment. In addition,
the principal assets employed by the Group are located
in Sichuan Province and Guangdong Province, the PRC.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented other than
entity-wide disclosures.

I REB AR ZBBAKME (KE
R e

AEBNBRAREENOEREEIRA
REARKREAHEBERNEE  HK
BIEE-—REH BABAAKRED
SREEEREEMEERIELRR
APfEREE TN — e s AEREER
MEBBEEAMRHTEMNIERERS -
l% REEERREIN RE250H
DA °

Entity-wide disclosures REERKRE
Information about products FRERNESR

The following table sets forth the total revenue from external
customers by product and the percentage of total revenue
during the year:

TREINFARERE D RBIBLEF
B ARG BRARNE D

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥ TR ARBEFIT
Marble slabs RNIB AR 52,567 77 .6% 23,678 75.4%
Marble slags KIEBAES 15,152 22.4% 7,705 24.6%
67,719 100% 31,383 100%
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS ERE R )
(Continued)
Entity-wide disclosures (Continved) EEEREE w)
Information about major customers FHRTEEZFHNEHR
Revenue from major cusfomers, each of whom accounted for KEXTEXFP(REZSHHEKANION
10% or more of the total revenue is set out below: A L) MR AEY T
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFIT
Customer A 2EA 30,812 10,981
Customer B =FB 21,755 12,698
Customer C* BERC* - 3,151
* Revenue derived from Customer C did not contribute over 10% or more * HE2018F12A318LFE - RETFCHEK
of total revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 December AN A RN EE B AR 10% A £ o
2018.
8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. Al W A KWt
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFIT
Interest income FBE U A 1 120
Exchange gain bE 5 W 5 - 137
Rental income Ha WA - 50
Reversal of impairment of H fth & R IA 2 R E B O
other receivables = 2,500
Reversal of provision for litigation AR E R 14,500 44,858
Others i 39 2,212
14,540 49,877
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9. IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE OF TRADE 9. B 5y IfE WK JE Uk A 4 A
RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREEFIT
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWFIARE 8,307 3,445
8,307 3,445
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. WAB AR
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREEFIT
Finance leases charges MEHEER 15 28
Interest on other loan B E R B — 249
15 277
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11. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1. BeBidt (EiR) A
The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after AEBENREA (BR) JafEmk/
charging/(crediting): (FFA)VUAT&IE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBET T
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 63,170 30,318
Staff costs (including directors’ EIXRA(BREEEME) :
remuneration):
Wages and salaries TEERF & 6,565 8,255
Equity-seftled share option expenses EanEEERER = 630
Pension scheme contributions RORET IR
— Defined contribution scheme — R RETE 104 108
Other staff benefits Hh 8 TEN 153 103
6,822 Q,096
Auditors’ remuneration FErT A& 470 451
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR £ 3t 78 & RRIA #E 8
payments 34 34
Depreciation of items of property, ME- BELREEBINE
plant and equipment 13,142 9,861
Reversal of impairment of H A, R W R IR (B 7
other receivables = (2,500)
Foreign exchange gain BE 3 M - [137)
Operating lease renfals for office PMAERKEHRS 5,637 4,904
loss on disposal of property, EEME BEREEER
plant and equipment 1,848 1,885
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ Emoluments

() EEM=

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE2018F12A31BLFE

12, H 2305 % T 44 B e 37 @ B LA
[

Salaries, Equity setfled
allowances and Refirement  share option Total
Fees  other benefits  benefits scheme expense emoluments
H& 2R Ri&S
s ARz BAEATE BRENX HesE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(i3 ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Executive directors: YESE:
Mr. Wang Minliang IRR%EE fi - 948 - - 948
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei RRERL - 886 - = 886
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong REREE - 130 - - 130
M. Zhong Weijn FHE4E - 151 - - 151
Mr. Zhang Mian pyibid:a i - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHITES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin BHELE il = 45 = = 45
Mr. Ma Ho Yin BEERE [iv) - 20 - = 20
Mr. Sheng Guoliang REREYE - 102 - - 102
Ms. Wang Yihua TEELT - 102 - - 102
- 2,384 - - 2,384
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HENI7F12R3181LEE
Salaries, Equily seffled
allowances and Refirement share option Total
Fees  other benefis  benefits scheme expense emoluments
H8 2HR BafE
Be Eefls  RARHEHE BN [LEF
Nofes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(5 ARETL ARETL ARETL ARETT ARETT
Execufive direcors: Hi7ES:
Mr. Wang Minliang TRARE (i = 1,041 = = 1,041
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei RRBRL - 885 - - 885
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong REBRLE - 133 - - 133
Mr. Zhang Weijun REERE - 156 - - 156
Independent non-execufive directors: BUENTES:
Mr. Ma Ho Yin SEBEE [iv) - 104 - - 104
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BEREE - 104 - - 104
Ms. Wang Yihua TEERT - 104 - - 104
- 2,527 - - 2,527
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12, T =850 S T4 dee s U ELEA

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Coninued T o)

(a) Directors’ Emoluments (Continved) () EEME 9
Notes: T
(i) Resigned on 12 September 2018 (i) MR2018F9 R 12HBHE
(i) Appointed on 4 February 2019 (ii) R2019F2 4B EER T
liiij  Appointed on 11 June 2018 (iii) MR2018F6R 11 BERT
liv  Resigned on 12 March 2018 liv)  H2018%3812HEHT
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for MARRTEE N 2FHFE RER
the executive directors are generally emoluments paid EVMRa AR ZEALTERRRF
or receivable in respect of those persons’ other services MENBRARAZEEMRMEZ At
in connection with the management of the affairs of the MBI IBERE 2 — R T -

Company and its subsidiaries.
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12. DIRECTORS” AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five Highest Paid Individual Emoluments
Two (2017: two) of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group were directors whose emolument is sef out in
the above. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
remaining three [2017: three] employees’ emoluments of
the Company were as follows:

BRI A AEEGIEBREA
T 4 ()
b) EEREHFEEEAMS

AEBELEARRHFEALTEEME
(2017 MB)EF KMz H
R EX-BZE2018F12H31H 1k
FE ARAEBK=F(2017F: =

H)EEHM ST :
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETFIT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ~ #r & ~ 2B K HE b E ¥ Flz

in kind 1,488 1,379
Refirement benefits scheme contributions R YR 4& FIl 5+ B4 53X 30 36
1,518 1,415

Their emoluments fell within the following bands: ®EZFHENEE T

Number of employees

EE®A
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARBETIT
Emolument band: £ E N
Nil = HK$500,000 0&500,0007% 7t 2 2
HK$500,001 - HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 L=
1,000,000 7T - ]
HK$ 1,000,001 = HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T2
1,500,000 7T 1 -
3 3

(c) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years

ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

FEESAREEZERERAF

MRBZE2018F K20175F12H3]1
BEMEFE AEETERES
FhERSHFALIIMNMES ER
WMol mEMARKEERRIMARSE
B R0 EERD HERREEA(E -
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13. INCOME TAX

13. i 1586

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBETT

Current — the PRC BNEA—p
— Charge for the year —FETH
Deferred tax IR FE R IR

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax
rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is 25% for
both years.

The reconciliation between the income tax for the year and
the (loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the tax rafe in the PRC

REFBEEEMSHE(TEXMABER
EDERCEMGRZABBKS N2 A
RABEZHERBRMREFE2HREE
R25% e

FAEH MR BB G RZ R HA
(B1]) JafEERnT:

is as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR T T
(Loss)/Profit before tax BEa (BE) RF (19,270) 7,797
Tax atf the applicable tax rate of BRASEBETARIBEAHRE
companies within the Group AEMEHNTIE (4,818) 1,949
Non-taxable income FEFE R UA (4,148) (21,844)
Expenses not deductible for tax A IR X 2,294 861
Effect on different tax rate of subsidiaries i B A &) 7~ A f1 K 8 52 £ 2,567 (430)
Tax loss not recognised RERTIAE B 4,105 19,464
Income tax F1gH = -

At 31 December 2018, the Group has unused fax losses of
RMB77,763,000 (2017: RMB51,825,000) available for
offsefting against future profits. No deferred tax asset (2017:
nil) has been recognized in respect of such tax losses, due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.
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14. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated total comprehensive loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018 includes a loss of approximately RMB8,637,000
(2017: RMB1,837,000), which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

15. (LOSS)/EARNING PER SHARE

(a) (Loss)/Earnings per share — Basic
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
loss for the year atfributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB19,270,000 (2017: profit of
RMB7,797,000) and the weighted average number of
2,832,083,000 (2017: 1,638,333,000) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

(b) (Loss)/Earnings per share — Diluted
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the diluted

eamings per share was the same as basic eamings per
share as there was no potential outstanding shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the effects of
all potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive since their
assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per
share.

16. DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

FEESAREEZERERAF

M—ﬁAﬁ%ﬁA%M¢ﬁ%ﬁgﬁ

15.

16.

an %/E\

BZE2018F12A3 1R IEFEXRR A
EARGGEE2EERARBREERY
AR ¥8,637,000E (20175 : AR ¥
1,837,0007T) - EE RN AR A 8 1% %
RANRIE -

g (R S BF

() B (BR) BF-EX
ARAEAEAREESRES
(BR) /BNDREAS A A
BEABEFEBBOARE
19,270,0007T (20174 =i | A
R¥7,797,000) R ERNE #ET
¥ 58 100 48 F 29 #2,832,083,000
A& (20174 :1,638,333,000/%)
HESH-

(b) R (BH) BN -#F
BE2018F 12831 ALEFE @R
IR EERITRG  REREERA
BEREARRFIAER -

HZE201/7F12R31BItFE - A
BEEBRHAEEREEZE )
HRBRRTEZSELLTRRTE
HEREERD -

Jit &,

EEQUTEZREE2018F 12431
BLEFEIRNEMKRE (20176 &) -

2018 3R 119



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W2~ B S st

Leasehold
improvement
Plantand  and Office Motor Mining ~ Consfruction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles infrastructure  in progress Total
HELER
BT HEREE BLERE RE  RRER HRIRE &t
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AR%TR ARETR AR%TR ARETR AR%T:R
COsT 223
A1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 9,232 62,955 11,484 17,040 61,183 106,752 268,646
Exchange realignment ERLAE - - 200 (185) - - 15
Additions AE - 240 72 - - 2,500 2,812
Disposal /wiite off e/ M - (7,398) (20) (633) - - 8,051)
Ai 31 December 2018 120185124318 9,232 55,797 11,736 16,222 61,183 109,252 263,422
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENTS: Rt iEREE
At T January 2018 R2018F1A18 3,250 16,584 6,256 9,189 13,950 17,390 66,619
Exchange reclignment B 5 HE - - 98 (234) - - (13¢)
Provided during the year FEE 576 8,743 678 3,145 - - 13,142
Disposal/write off e/ - 4,946) (20) (602) - - 5,568)
Ai 31 December 2018 20185124318 3,826 20,381 7,012 11,498 13,950 17,390 74,057
Net Carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2018 20185124318 5,406 35,416 4,724 4,724 47,233 91,862 189,365
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved)

17. W3~ B Boad i oz)

leasehold
improvement
Plontand  and Office Mining  Construction

Buildings  machinery  equipment Molor vehicles infrasfructure  in progress Total

BERER
BT BREREE BLORRRE RE  REBEE  ERIRE aif
RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMBOO0  RMB'OOO  RMB0OO  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARBTL ARMTRT ARBTR ARETR ARMTRT ARETR ARETR

COST: A

At T January 2017 ®201741A18 9,258 69,263 6,711 17,397 61,183 92,933 256,745
Exchange realignment R A - 1278) [196) - - 1500)
Additions AE - 5,166 593 = 13,819 19,578
Disposal /wiite off HE/ M 16,308 [115) (754) - - 17.177)
A 31 December 2017 #2017612A318 9,232 62,955 11,484 17,040 61,183 106,752 268,646

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENTS:  REHHERRE :

At 1 January 2017 w2171 818 2,673 15,826 6,498 6,133 13,950 17,390 62,470
Exchange realignment EiAZ - 1276) (132) - - 408
Charge for during the year FRZ 577 5,249 142 3,893 - - 9,861
Disposal/write off HE /M (4,491 [108) (705) - - 15,304
At 31 December 2017 20176128318 3,250 16,584 6,256 9189 13,950 17,390 66,619
CARRYING AMOUNTS: FAfE:
At 31 December 2017 R2017812R318 5,982 46,371 5,228 7851 47,233 89,362 202,027

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly used in
the Group's sale of marble and marble related products cash
generating unit (the “Sichuan Jinshida CGU"). During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the directors conducted a review
of the recoverable amount of the Group's property, plant
and equipment, intangible assefs and prepaid land lease
based on the value in use of Sichuan Jinshida CGU. It was
defermined that no impairment loss fo be recognised in 2018
in the Group's property, plant and equipment, infangible
assets and prepaid land lease. The recoverable amount have
been determined on the basis of the value in use of the CGU,
with reference to the valuation prepared by an independent
professional valuer. The pre-tax discount rate in measuring the
amounts of value in use were 20% (2017:17%) in relation
to Sichuan Jinshida CGU. The growth rate of cash flow in
the long run are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of
3% (2017: 2%). Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows,/outflows
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is
based on the Sichuan Jinshida CGU's past performance and
management’s expectation for future performance.

FEESAREEZERERAF

AEEZNE BERRFEEISARAE
EEARARARAHBERRSEL
Bl ([m)&BEReELEEN]) 2
HE -REE2018F12A31HILFE
EERRN) R EREELSM 2@
REEEMAEE L BERRE-
WA RN+ 8 E 5 E 2 ]
D4E BER0I8EEEERAER
2% BERRE BRAENREN
TSR IE R E S e S
BCoRBUEREAEMETORER
WeEEEN Y EBEEET- %m)
SHERSELENHEFEABEESE
ZHATELIR R B20% (201 7F :17%) °
Behe s EMHEERERIL (2017
%) 2 BERERBE - EEAE
BErHEAETEBRZSRESRA T
2iEE BEEEHEERENE A
EHDREN) I SBERSELEM Y
E&%ﬁ&%@@%*%%ﬁZﬁﬂ%
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Coninved) ~ 17. #12E ~ W5 B 5% il (o)

The carrying amount of motor vehicle of approximately MEZEEEHNAREAL,724,000T

RMB4,724,000 include an amount of RMB433,000 (2017: PBRBEMEMNEFRECEEARY

RMB845,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases. 433,0007T (20174 AR¥845,000
JT) °

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. EIEEE

Mining
rights
PRUE R
RMB'000
ARBEFIT
COST: KA
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, A2017961 1820174128318 *
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 2018F1H1HK2018F12A31H 62,785
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND R BEREE:
IMPAIRMENT:
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1A1H 19,053
Charge for the year FAX -
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12A31H
and 1 January 2018 K2018F1A1H 19,053
Charge for the year FAXH -
Impairments BB -
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12H31H 19,053
CARRYING AMOUNTS: BREE:
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31H 43,732
At 31 December 2017 ®2017%F12A31H 43,732
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continved) 18. IEEE (2

The infangible asset represent rights for the mining of marble
reserves in the Zhangjioba Mine which is located in Jiangyou
County, Sichuan Province, the PRC. The Mine is operated
by the Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Sichuan
Jiangyou Jinshida Stone Co., Lld.* (“Sichuan Jinshida“). The
local government granted the mining permits to Sichuan
Jinshida with a term of 10 years to 1 February 2021.

* English translation for identification only

The Group conducted a reviews of the recoverable amount of
its infangible assets in 2018. The Group's infangible assets
are used in the Group's sale of marble and marble related
products cash generating unit (the “Sichuan Jinshida CGU").

No impairment loss was recognised for the years ended 31

December 2018 and 2017/.

FEESAREEZERERAF

BV EERARRREBILANKER
REMEN ZBIUMCRPEMD)IET
HE AALAREZENB LD
THEREAZARAA (W) £
ZRE-WITBRARTOINERKER
HIOFMRBFAE 22021624
S

* WX ETBEMRED

REBR2018FEMEBTLEE 27K
AEE - AEEZBTLEERRNAKE
REARKEAHBEMRRSELEN
(T &EEReELEM]) ZHE-

BHZE2018F K201 7F12A31RIL#F
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19. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FHAF 4 HofH B 3508
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January RITATEEREE 1,287 1,321
Amortisation for the year FAHH (34) (34)
Carrying amount at 31 December RI12A31BMEEE 1,253 1,287

Prepaid land lease payments represent the acquisition cost of
state-owned land use rights in the PRC, which is held under a
medium term lease.

20. SUBSIDIARIES 20.

The list below gives the particulars of principal subsidiaries of
the Group which, in opinion of the directors, principally affect
the operating results and net assefs of the Group. To give full
defails of subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in parficulars of excessive length.

BENLTwHERBRERTBEEERSE L
WEREORA AR IRIESH
MAEE -

¥ I8 2> Wl
TREINAEEZZWMBRARANFE -
EEZRB RERRHAEENKE?
BREEFERNEEYE -BEFAR
FPTAMEB AR EHRMANE B
RIT&K e

Place of Nominal valve of issued  Percentage of equity
incorporation/ and paid-up share/ inferests attributable to
Company name registration registered paid-up capital the Company  Principal activities
Rl BRTRBRREG, ERA RS
ARER a1 it 3 AMARREZEE BEEAL TEEH
2018: 2017:
2018%: 2017%:
Directly held:
BERE:
Kingstone Industrial Investment Limited the BVI Us$1 100% 100%  Invesiment holding
EhEFREERAR RERAHE [E REZR
Success United Asia Lid. the BVI US$1 100% 100%  Trading of marble slabs
Success United Asia Ltd. RBRIHES 1% BEARBRARMY
Indirectly held:
BEEE:
Kingstone [HK) Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
20 (BE)EBERAA BE 1T REER
Kingstone {Guangzhou] Mable Indusiry Co., lid.*  the PRC US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and trading of
"Kingstone Guangzhou') consfruction materials
2R (BEM)RERRRA ([2AEM]) i 50,000,000% 7 MIREEREMH
Sichuan Jiangyou Jinshida Stone Co., Lid. * the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Mining, processing and trading of
consfruction materials
mITRERELRERAA e AE#10,000,0007C RE MIREEREN R

* English translation for identification only
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 21. BEBIHA AR
The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: BERBEENEEHNOT
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of a
subsidiary
X W B B B 2 |
FFEENQAAE
T
RMB'000
AREF T
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, HR2017F181H 201 7%12A318 -~
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 20181 A1H KR20184%12A31H 608
Deferred tax liabilities related to the PRC subsidiaries have ERTPBENBARMECHEEEE R
been provided at an enacted corporate income tax rate of ERMEEEMBHRER25%HR A -
25%.
22. INVENTORIES 22. &
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREF T
Marble blocks and slabs KBRS RARM = 460
Materials and supplies RSP R 369 2,568
369 3,028
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. B 5 BEWGHRIA
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Trade receivables g 5 RN RIA 182,782 136,084
less: impairment B ORE (111,098) (102,791)
71,684 33,293
The Group's trading ferms with its customers are mainly on AEBEREZFNESBRAREIEREFEE
credit. Except for certain customers solicited by the Group at R BRAEEREFAEAERELERE
the beginning of its commercial operation were granted for a BENETEPERTREREESHIN
longer credit terms, the credit period is generally three months. FEH-—RKRA=ZHEA XEERZE iT E
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding i $1§3§FEH5Z HIBE MRS EH AR
receivables to minimise credit risk. Trade receivable are non- WMIEEERR - -E 5 EKE IE?%TH’ B e

interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of trade receivables, as at the end of the RBEPRR REERXNBEH BH5HE

reporting periods based on the goods delivery date, and net WA (EMRBIE) DBRE DT
of impairments, is as follows:

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

0 to 90 days 0&=90H 2,878 22,941

Q1 to 180 days Q1E180H 33,060 =

181 to 365 days 1812365H 16,632 =

Over 1 year 1E A E 19,114 10,352

71,684 33,293

The director believed that no impairment loss is necessary in EERR ANEEERAUBERED

respect of other balances which are past due but not impaired BEBAEKDNEE R WE - Stk B A

as there has not been a significant change in credit quality w28 HE RO E 2 H b 45 &5 1 ROR B

and the balances are still considered recoverable. B 18 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Confinved] 23. ¥ 5 BEWGKIE (a)
Reconciliation of impairment of trade receivables: B HRYEKEZRELHRMT
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T TR ARBTT
At beginning of year R EA] 102,791 99,346
Allowance for the year KEFZEE 8,307 3,445
At end of year REFR 111,098 102,791
As af 31 December 2018, included in trade receivables past M2018F12A31H 5 A& 5 KK

24.

due but not impaired were trade receivables of approximately
RMB10,352,000 (2017: RMB10,352,000) which were
secured by cerfain properties in the PRC as collateral
("Properties”). The Group has taken legal action fo exercise ifs
right to obtain the tille of the Properties. As at 31 December
2018, a valuation was conducted on the Properties by an
independent valuer and the recoverable amounts of the frade
receivables based on the net realisable values of the Properties
were higher than the carrying amount (after deduction of tax
and estimated legal costs).

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
(@) Non-current portion
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has prepayment
of RMB51,642,000 for acquisition of property, plant

and equipment.

FEESAREEZERERAF

24.

HEBMERKREZE S ERKED
BARMI0,352,0007T (20174 = A
K#10,352,0007T) » 2 KB A E TL
RPBENDE(MXDERERDE
TER - AEBEERPOERITHAITRE
HEMNESMEOMEE -N20185F12
A31 EI ﬁiﬁ@ﬁﬁiﬂ%ﬂ%%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ

= IEZTH&@&%E(?‘“?D %RIE)SHEW.#
FEBREZ)ENE@E-
TH AT ZH At JE Wik 0

(a) FREED
M2018F12A318 ~EBEEH
RBYE BEREKBHEHEMNK
HARMS51,642,0007T ¢
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FEAF#RIE - F4 e Ho A JE Wk I8

RECEIVABLES (Continued) (&)
(b) current portion (b) RENH 2
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFT
Prepayments for the purchase of BERME AR
raw materials = 8,325
Prepayment B FRIR 13 -
Deposits b geira 3,185 2,377
Others Eih 743 4,457
3,941 15,159
25. SECURED SENIOR LOAN NOTE 25. HIRM BB R R B
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR AR¥ETT
Secured senior loan note EERBEREREE - 45,828
Exchange realignment PE 5 % - (269)
less: Impairment R RE = (45,559)

Note: B o

On 13 May 2015, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement R2015F5R 138 A&BEH-—FREHILEEW

128

with a vendor, to acquire a secured senior loan note (“loan Note") of nominal
amount of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB6S5,150,000)
issued by Magnificent Century limited (the “Note Issuer’). The total issued
amount of the Lloan Note was US$45,000,000. The Loan Note carries inferest
at the rate of 10% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears and was issued
on 10 August 2012 for a period of three years with a maturity date on 7
August 2015 (the “Maturity Date”). The loan Note may be redeemed by the
Note lssuer in part or in principal amount of up to 75% of the total principal
amount outstanding at any time after twelve months from the date of issue of the
Lloan Note and prior to the Maturity Date at the principal amount of the Loan
Note plus all inferest accrued thereon and unpaid as at the date of redemption.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

# - LAUUE Magnificent Century Limited ([ R R & 17
A BITHEE /10,000,000 T (KHEERAR
#65 150000 WERREBEEFRRR ([EFRE
B -BERERZEITEHERTR45000,000% 7T
EREBRFNERION S AREFFHRIN A
ERRER201248R108 %7 RBE=FRIHA
R2015%8A7A (BIHA]) - RERETATAEK
ERMBTRSMEF T —ERARRERERASRE
HEMEAERBEORS X ACERE/AREERD
HE/SHERRE  SMABRANEE A HARTH
FRBFE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

25.

SECURED SENIOR LOAN NOTE (Continved)

Note: (Continued)

The Lloan Note was guaranteed by two guarantors, Dragon Canal International
Holdings Llimited and Golden Dragon Century Llimited and secured by the
charges of shares in the Note Issuer's subsidiary which is engaged in natural
gas business (the “Security”). To the best knowledge, information and belief
of the directors having made all reasonable enquiry, each of the vendor, the
Note Issuer, the guarantors and their respective ultimate beneficial owners is an

independent third party.

The Note Issuer failed to repay the Loan Note by the Maturity Date. The details
can be referred to the Company’s announcement dated 9 August 2015. The
Group is currently seeking legal advice as to the appropriate course of action in
respect of the said event of default under the Loan Note. According to the terms
of the instrument of the Loan Note (the “Instrument”), the Group is not entitled to
enforce its rights under the Instrument against the Issuer and/or the guarantors
without the prior writtlen consent of the noteholder whose holdings of the Loan
Notes represents more than 50% of the principal amount of all the Loan Notes
created by the Instrument then outstanding. As at the date of this report, the
noteholders are still in the process of exploring the possible actions to be taken

in respect of the said event of default.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, based on additional information from
the creditor’s meeting of the Loan Note, the Note Issuer's subsidiary was being
filed with the winding-up pefition by the local creditors. As the Company has
not yet obtained further information about this winding-up petition for the Note
Issuer’s subsidiary and the outcome of the winding-up is highly uncertain, the
Directors considered the likelihood of recovering any amount of the Loan Note
was remote. The Group recorded an impairment loss of RMB46,863,000 on

the Loan Note fo fully impair the Loan Note.

Up to the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company was aware of that the
auction of the major assets of the Note lssue's subsidiary has been completed
and the Company, has not obtained further information for receiving any
distribution or compensation from the liquidation of the Note Issuer’s subsidiary,
The Company decided to write off the senior loan note amount during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

FEESAREEZERERAF

%

AR RS o)

BiaE: (&)

BREE ARG ERADragon Canal International
Holdings Llimited R @ BEtH &2 R A A REEREBHR
BETAZHBRR (RERARES) 2RO RIE
ER([ERR]) BESLEL - DABEREMAR
M BEREES B EBEETA BERAUARES
ERZEREGHEASBRBILE=S -

ERBETARERIPAAMNEEERRR - FHMAH
A2MARRBEHR2015F8AOEN A E - REEE
AESFERBERUARERRRATHRENEMFR
BMEETH REERRRZXE (X&) HEH K
BEBRBA(EMBBEERERBRHEERREEE
PR SIMI B EREBR AL HEO0% N L) FEEERE
AEEERYEREETARRERARITEELR
XETHERN - RARS B REFE AN Lz
HWERBRAGELRMMNTE

REE2016F12A31BILFE  REREEXRREE
BAGEZEMEN EEMEBRASHRTRETA
MBARERFREF ARARRRNAESHEBAM
ERBOTAMBRAREEREFNE - SENRE
BIZERBTHRE EERRURERRZRENESE
ZARMEENR - ARESESEFEREREBEARE
46,863,0007T * VARE B R R IR B B R E -

BEEHZE2018FI12A31ALFE  ARAEBEREH
TANMBRARAEIBREEMRED TK BEADE AR
SEREERBRBTANBARFENSEMORKK
MENE—FEN ARFREREE2018412A31
BILFEBRHEELERERERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31 B ILFE
26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Group's cash and bank balances are all denominated in
the following currencies:

26. Bl kB FEY
AR HR SRR E B T ES
sHE:

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
AREFT R AREEFIT

Cash and bank balances: We MIBTHES:
RMB AR 5,345 4,624
HK$ BT 59,640 163,915
us$ ETT 73 /4
65,058 168,613

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations, the Group is permitted fo exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

27. TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally
setfled in 90 days. An aged analysis of trade payables,
based on the invoice date, is as follows:

ARBATTAEmABMKEME R KR
B(REARANMBIIEEREH) - &
SEEEEBERBETIERHOR
T BARBHBSEMER-

27. B 5 HEAT IR
BESENRARRSE —BNO0H NE
- REFREH BB ENREN KR
m

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARET T

0 to 60 days 0%60H 1,765 585
61 to 120 days 61Z£120H - =
121 to 180 days 1212180H - 2
Over 180 days 180H A k£ 49 1},333
1,814 1,220
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28. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE 28. MG E RS
The Group has obligation under finance leases of motor AEBEAEZMEMEAE (M
vehicle [Note 17). The lease term is 5 years (2017: 5 years). 17) - HEASF (201 7F : 54) o
The interest rate is of flat rate from 1.3% to 1.8% (2017: ZEGFFLEI3%E].8% (201 /74 :
1.8%) per annum. 1.8%) °
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payment lease payments
BERERE RERERERE
2018 2017 2018 2017
20184 2017F 2018% 2017%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT AREBTR ARETR

Within one year ¥R/ 235 410 233 396
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEENE

(BREEWF) - 204 - 201

235 614 233 597

less: Future finance charges W RRMBER (2) (17) = -

Present value of lease obligations HERERE 233 597 233 597

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months 8 : W12/ A & E M A
323

[shown under current liabilities) (RRBEEETZ7) (233) [396)

Amount due for setilement after 12 months RI2EAREEMNFE - 201
All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong ERNREBEABITE:.
dollars.
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

29. oAb JE A sk IH e Mg it 22

2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AREF T
Payables relating fo: BB % IR A B e FE A ROR

Taxes other than income tax FHIE (FTEHIRRIN) 1,474 1,300
Payroll and welfare TEREF 6,073 5,156
Amounts due to directors (Note) ENESFIE (M) 831 400
Deposits received ElRE 98 Q4
Others E 10,788 7,002
19,264 13,952

Note: B EE -

The amounts are unsecured, inferestfree and repayable on demand.

30. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION 30.

¥ A 8%

e s

FZRAREER 8 RARERER -

(a)

On 13 July 2015, Royal Moon Infernational Company
Limited (“Royal Moon"), the underwriter of the open
offer announced by the Company on 14 May 2015,
issued a writ of summons at the High Court of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Writ")
against the Company. Pursuant to the Writ, Royal Moon
claims against the Company, amongst others, a sum of
not less than HK$150,000,000 being damages for
the breach of a written underwriting agreement made
between Royal Moon and the Company dated 13
May 2015. The Group made a provision of HK$92.0
million (equivalent to RMB82.4 million) in relation to an
estimated cash outflow in relation to the litigation for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

On 29 September 2017, the Company and Royal
Moon entered into a consent order, and all proceedings
in relation to the litigation was wholly discontinued and
there was no order as to costs. The sum of provision of
HK$92.0 million [equivalent to RMB82.4 million] was
recorded for the reversal of the provision in the profit
and loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

132 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

(a)

M2015F7R138 AA2 AR
201565R14B 22 AR EE
BHEAEABEBRERRAR ([2A])
AEEFATERRRFERSHA
AEBEHERSK (TLH]R]) R
TR EARARRRE( EFE
B)—FREAL 150,000,000
BAL( EREABKRNQBMAEL
HER2015F5A13BZEEE
HHhEcBRERE)ZCHR -BE
2015F12A31BIEFE A& H
ERBREFRZEFRERHFTIR
##92,000,000% T ( HE R A
R #82,400,0007T) °

MR2017F9H290B - R RARIEE
BYRES MFEBEBAFDLZRE
FrRE&LERNMEEEMNARRE
W< AKEEEE2017F12A
SIBLEFEzBaRESRED &
#H 2 £%92,000,0008 T (MBE
RAR®82,400,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018412431 H IEFE
30. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(b)

A litigation related to a claim of RMB15 million together
with interest and cost thereon [collectively the “Claim”)
charged by Mr. Shao Weiquan (the “Plainfiff’) against
Sichuan Jiangyou Jinshida Stone Co., Llimited (4)l|
IHEREARAEAFGR QA (“Sichuan Jinshida”), an
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
others including Mr. Huang Xianyou, the then controlling
shareholder of the Company and former owner of
Sichuan Jinshida, pursuant to the guarantees purported
to be executed by each of them in 2010 in favour of
the Plaintiff in securing the obligation and liabilities of
Guangzhou Jiucheng Mining Co., lid (“Guangzhou
Jiucheng”), a then related party of the Company, under
the loan agreement entered into between the Plaintiff
and Guangzhou Jiucheng dated 25 July 2010.

In September 2014, Guangdong Province Maoming
City Dianbai District People's Court handed down a
judgment against Sichuan Jinshida in respect of the
Claim. In August 2016, Sichuan Jinshida appealed
against the judgement to Guangdong Province Maoming
City Intermediate People’s Court but the appeal was
dismissed.

In June 2017, Sichuan Jinshida received an enforcement
decision made by the Guangdong Province Maoming
City Dianbai District People's Court (the “Decision”).
Pursuant to the Decision, the mining right of the
Zhangjiaba Mine was seized for a period of three
years.

On 5 July 2018, Sichuan Jinshida entered into a
settlement agreement with the Plaintiff, of which Sichuan
Jinshida and the Plaintiff agreed to seftle the Claim for
RMB21.8 million (the "Settlement Agreement”) which
shall be paid by two instalments namely (1) RMB10
million within 15 business days, after the entering of
the Seftlement Agreement and (2) RMB11.8 million
within four months after the entering of the Seftlement
Agreement. The Plaintiff also agreed to discharge
any liabilities of Sichuan Jinshida and forgo any other
claim in connection with the subject matter upon the full
payment of the Claim.

HE S AREERARA T

30.

A s P ()

(b]

BEEEE(TRE])HHAQF
FE2ENB QR ML)ITheRE
AERFER2A(TONIIEREZ]) R
EERALE (RARAERNER
REEONSEHENNEBEA)E
HALTIREFR RIEZWHRK
FX£BR2010FRARERLHE
RN A E B H BRE 77 BN AR
XERAR(TEMAKIIRRSE
BN AR R2010F7 A258 7]
YHMERBZETITEBERETH
ER - BERARK15000,000%T
BERBEMNERER (ER®E
Rl

R2014F908 BEREXAMER
BARERFAROCHEERR
REEF-R2016F8 A Ml & &
EREREXEMHRRARERE
H bR B ERERE-

R2017F6R Wl RERERE
REAKEBMEOARARZARELH
BHMTREE(IREE]) R
BREE  REBELOREER
EH=F-

20187 A58 - M)l & K= H
RETIMBEGZ B T2
FrEERERBEMPRETME
MBEEBAR/ARYK21,800,0007T
(Tl BoMEM: (1)
AR ®10,000,0007T 7 & 32 A A7
HEERISEEXRBAN R(2)A
K ¥11,800,0007T 5 &1 32 A 7 #
BEMNEAAXN RETRER
BHENHFRREET)I 2 ED
ETRNETERERBRENZTEANE
M EMER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 201812431 H [LFE
30. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(Continued)

The Group made a provision of RMB37.5 million in
relation to the Claim for the year ended 31 December
2017. As a result of the Setlement Agreement, a gain
on reversal of a provision of approximately RMB15.7
million will be reflected in the profit and loss account of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

On 8 August 2018, the Company received a writ of
summons (the “Writ") issued in the Court of First Instance
of the High Court of Hong Kong under Commercial List
Action No. 5 of 2018 [the "Action”) by Mr. Li Jioju (the
“Plaintiff") against Kinwin International Investment Limited
(the “1st Defendant’), a company wholly owned by a
former director, the Company (the “2nd Defendant”)
and the former director (the “3rd Defendant”), in relation
to a claim for the sum of approximately HK$23.7
million plus inferest and costs against the 1st Defendant
or alternatively, a claim for a sum of approximately
HK$21.2 million plus interest and costs against the
Company or alternatively a claim for the sum owned by
the 1st Defendant against the 3rd Defendant, pursuant
to a loan agreement between the Plaintiff and the 1st
Defendant and an alleged deed of assignment that was
executed between the Plaintiff, 1st Defendant, the 2nd
Defendant. The Company considered no provision made
for the case as this proceeding is sfill at its early stage
and the Company is highly unlikely to incur any further
liability as at 31 December 2018.

On 22 August 2018, the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region ("High Court”] handed
down a judgement to dismiss the application for
summary judgment from Zhongtai International Wealth
Management Limited (the “Plaintiff’) which is the financier
of Royal Moon for underwriting of open offer announced
by the Company on 14 May 2015, for a claim that
the Company is liable to account to the Plaintiff for
wrongfully returning the balance of fund of approximately
HK$61.4 million from the open offer bank account to
Royal Moon on the ground of the alleged breach of trust
and/or breach of equitable/fiduciary duties.
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30.

PREA T ()

(b)

(c]

(d)

(#%&)

AEBEREBEE2017F12R31
BLEFEERBERFRBEBARE
37,500,0007T = M 7° 1 % 175 &%
SEKREZ2018F12A31H 1k
FENBERARBOREGZ s
HARME15,700,0007T

R2018F8A8H KA REREZE
XL (TRE])RIZE20185H
EHBIFAESH ([Farl) REE
BEERRFEEHHEBERKRER
BARAR([F—%E] —HA
MEEE2EHBAZRAR) AR
A(E-®EDERAMEES (£
=wmEDBEENEASK (L
M) AREARBEREHE —
SRV ZERBEERERSE —
BE F_RERIL - NEBERE
BRE HEF-WERLEEY
23,700,000 T = A B & &M
ZRE AHHARAREEELY
21,200,000 T MA B & &R
ZRME - SE B = E R
F-RERNEBZIRE-AAA
RA- B R B AT R FF A1) H R
EREBEM2018F12HA31B AR A
AAEELETMAE-FRE RL
ERLU TR RE -

R2018%F8A228 - BEE R RIITH
BEmEER (IRFEKR]) TEH
RE LR REREBERBR A A
(TR&E]) (ERARARN2015%F
SAVABRRMZAREERHERE
ARBES)NBRZHAREF R
THRARBERRHABEERT
RPHERIMAEAREESHELN
61,400,000 TtmmRER L&
T EhARBRERGRER LR
REF¥/REEME-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018412431 H IEFE
30. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(d)

(Continued)

The Plaintiff is claiming for equitable compensation and/
or damages, and/or account of profits on the ground
of the Company's breach of trust, together with an
order to pay to the Plaintiff such sum as may be found
due or payable, including relevant interests and coss.
The Plaintiff is also seeking for a declaration that the
Company is liable to account to the Plaintiff for the
balance of the fund in the open offer account of the
Company or such other sum as the Court thinks fit on the
ground of its breach of trust.

The Company considered no provision made for the
case as this proceeding is sfill at its early sfage and the
Company is highly unlikely o incur any further liability
as at 31 December 2018.

FEESAREEZERERAF

30.

i s A )

(d]

(%)

RERARBEREAMRESF
MER/ABEEHEE RXXH
BMNE YERESINEEER
At ERN 2R BEREARN
ERER REESKEEALQT
MARBARABERFZESTHRE
mMAREE LFEFHERER /A E
ZEMEE BEARARFAERE
o

ARBRBR AREBADERFR
FIHAPE Er B M2018F12H31H K
RATARAGEELEEME-—FTE
B ML EB AR RE -

2018 3R 135



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥
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30. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

e)

On 8 August 2018,
notification of proceeding served by Guangzhou City

the Company received a

Huangpu district People’s Court pursuant to which Mr.
Caiyou (the “Plaintiff’) commenced a legal proceedings
against Sichuan Jinshida (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company] (the “1st Defendant”), Kingstone
Guangzhou, (the “2nd Defendant’] and other, due to
the disputes of an agreement dated @ August 2013
for assignment of loan between Sichuan Jinshida (as
assignor)] Mr. Cao You ["Mr. Cao”] (as assignee) and
Guangdong Huaxia Financial Guarantee Co., (as
guarantor of the assignment agreement] pursuant fo
which Sichuan Jinshida has agreed to assign and Mr.
Cai has agreed to accept Sichuan Jinshida's rights,
title, interest and benefits in and to the loan at a fotal

consideration of RMB40,000,000.

Pursuant to the civil compliant, the plaintiff claims
against Sichuan Jinshida and other defedants [i] to
rescind the assignment agreement and an alleged
supplemental agreement, (i) to return the deposit and
part of considerafion in amount of RMB8.0 million in
aggregate, iii) to pay compensation of RMB5.0 million.

The Company is seeking to the legal advice on the
case. A provision for litigation of RMB1.2 million
regarding this case was recognized for the year ended
31 December 2018.

136 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

30.

PREA T ()

(e)

R2018F8RA8H  AAREEE
N E IR ARER X EZFRE
M-y EZARE(TREDEAY
milekE (FREEAN) HEAL
ETEEE] - FREBA)RE
REERMEERERAR (FRE
EHHEIERA) ZHEFTLZHN B
R2013F8A0R 2 B EE A 5
FEFEMHHARAZ2EH B
AR EEE(E-HKE])
TABEM([HE _WE]) FREEHF
BOREZBR Q) EHEEDR
EEZEZALCAEEADIE
REHZEERZHZEN A
B EakiE BRERARE
40,000,0007T °

REZREFEHFRMA REEBRKMD
NEREREMESE () BHEZ
EEmhELBEATHE ()R
BERazRHBOIREAHXARE
8,000,0007T & (iii) X [t EE B £ A
E#5,000,0007T °

ARBERESREARER -#HE
20185 12A31HIEFE 28t
HRFLEEARKE, 200,000
7T|:0
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE
31. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION

32.

31. 1R

RMB’000
AREFT T

At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R2017F1B1H 20174128318 -
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 2018 1H1H ®2018F12831H 2,697

The Group is required to make payments for restoration and

rehabilitation of certain land after the sites have been mined.

The Provision is measured in accordance with the relevant

rules and regulations applicable in the PRC atf the end of the

reporting period, and using cash flows estimation. Its carrying

amount is the present value of those cash flows.

RAXRBERR AREENREERE
BETLH -BEDIRBSHRRES
BEmAzBERREER WKRBMGE
AAZBREREME-HEEEDNRETR
EREZRE

SHARE CAPITAL 32. AR
Number of shares
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEC.IBT2EER Ko EE
‘000 RMB'000
T ARETF T
Authorised ordinary share of BREEC.O1E T
HK$0.01 each VA TE AR
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017,  R2017F1H18
1 January 2018 and 2017%12A318
31 December 2018 2018F1A1H K
20184 12A31H 150,000,000 1,215,275
Issued and fully paid ordinary share BREEC.OVET Y
of HK$0.01 each BEITRAR L EAR
At 1 January 2017 M2017%F1A1H 472,014 3,883
Rights issue (note (al) AT (I 5E(a)) 2,360,069 20,552
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 2017124318
and 31 December 2018 2018F1R1H K
2018 12H31H 2,832,083 24,435

FEESAREEZERERAF
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32.

33.

138

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a) On 7 July 2017, the Company issued rights shares on the basis of five
rights shares for every one existing share held on 3 March 2017, at the
subscription price of HK$0.12 per rights share, resulting in net proceeds
of approximately HK$276.5 million, which was used for purchasing of
machineries, financing business development and would also be used for

future investment opportunities.

RESERVES

Contributed reserve

It represents the aggregate amount of the consideration of
RMB24,480,000 paid to the former owners of Sichuan
Jinshida by the ultimate controlling shareholder to obtain
the control over Sichuan Jinshida by 14 March 2008 after
nefting off the investment cost of RMB10,000,000 paid by
the Group on the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Sichuan Jinshida from the ultimate controlling shareholder
pursuant to the reorganisation, as if the acquisition had
been completed from the beginning of the year ended 31
December 2010. The corresponding liability of the investment
cost of RMB10,000,000 payable fo the ultimate controlling
shareholder arising from the acquisition pursuant to the
reorganization was classified as a current liability as at 31
December 2009 and the balance was seftled in November
2010.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

32.

33.

A ()

BeE:

(a) M2017%7R78 AR RIERKR201743A3H
BRAE-BRRERMDATERRAREBRRN 2E
EETHE RBEATRHERERMN012ET
EEFRSHRIAFFEL276,500,0008 T 2 A
REERERAEBERERESURIHA
RARRIREHS -

fifi i

BB
BARBESKRERBERANG YO
N & B 22 B 45§l 4 ™ R 2008F3 A 14
RATmE)I &R ZENAMERANNE
REARMK24,480,0007 F £ MK KR
SERRBEEARKLIERBRREREEN
N B i 2 B A BE T ST B9 I E AR A
E#10,000,000t BankEEHEE
REZE2010F12A31B IEFE R B K
TR -BARBEEAETHRESFEMES
MENKBRERRERRERAARKE
10,000,000 T #) 18 fE & & 2 M 20094
12A3VADERRBDEE MAZLERE
R2010F11AEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F 12A31H ILFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34. Mk A st 1
2011 Option Scheme 2011 B R AESH &
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
2018%12A31H 2017%12A318
Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number of  average exercise Number of
price per share options price per share options
SRmE B
TFHTRE BREZE FHITEE BREHA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT TR B Tk
Outstanding af beginning of reporting period REEBIRITE 0.66 65,002 2.81 16,348
Share options granted during the year FERR LR E
- fo direcfors -MES
Granted during the year FRRI - - 0.0972 47,200
lapsed during the year EREM - - 2.30 (3,762)
Adjusiment upon rights issued effective on n2017%7A78
7 July 2017 IR E B R - - = 5216
Outstanding at end of reporting period RBEBRKRITER 0.66 65,002 0.66 65,002
Exercisable at end of reporting period R EBRATE 0.66 65,002 0.66 65,002
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a PR FE R i R T (R B B AR A2 B9 N
weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.97 vyears FHRBEHNH R O7F (20175 -
(2017: 8.99 years) and the exercise prices range from 8.90F ) RITEEHE N F0.0972% T
HK$0.0972 to HK$7.97 (2017: HK$0.0972 to HK$7.97). 2797w (2017F:0.09728 L=
7.Q7H&TT) °
The exercise price and exercise period of those share opfions 20174 12H31H Kk2018412H31
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme as at 31 H ZERERAAEEABRESS
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are as follows: BTERTEBERENTEEMITER
W
Number of  Exercise price
options per share  Exercise period
BREHA BRITEE THEY
'000 HK$
T BT
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12H31R = - N/A
TEM
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12H31H = - N/A
TNEM
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued) 34. Ji IBERE ST ) )
The exercise price and exercise period of those share options M2017F12A31H K2018F12H3]
outstanding under the 2011 Option Scheme as at 31 B ZER201 1 FHEREFEETHAR
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are as follows: TEBRENTEEMITERNT
Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BREBE SKRITEE THEB
‘000 HK$
T BT
At 31 December 2018 1,351 7.97  Three tranches in proportion of 50%, 25% and
R2018%F12A31H 25% exercisable form 4 November 2011, 4

November 2012 and 4 November 2013 to
3 November 2021, respectively.

1250% ~ 25% K 25% ML Bl E=4Ht - 5 B B
201111848 -2012F11 A4H k20134
114 ZE2021F11 A3 LA F17fF

3,464 1.74  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
B2014F6A20H B E2024F6A25H 1

3,290 1.74  From 9 June 2014 to 8 June 2024
B2014F6A0RBE2024F6H8A IE

4,849 1.63  From 19 December 2014 to 18 December

2024 12,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2014:
and 24,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

BH2014F 1281988 E2024F12H18H Lt
B H12,000,00017 BB #EA] 7A20144F 12
R19B 82 #%171F - R#FEHBI24,000,00017
BRI R2015F 128198 2 %17(F -

4,848 1.65  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
B2015F1 41288 E2024F 1283158 1k
47,200 0.0972  From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017%11A23BE2027F11H228 1t
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018412431 H IEFE
34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued)

34. WERHRESTE] ()

Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BRESE SKRITEE THEH
‘000 HK$
T BT
At 31 December 2017 1,351 7.97  Three tranches in proportion of 50%, 25% and
MR2017%F12A31H 25% exercisable form 4 November 2011, 4
November 2012 and 4 November 2013 to
3 November 2021, respectively.
B50% 25% R25% ML Bl E=4#t DRI B
2011%F 11848 2012F11 A4H %20134F
1TA4B#EZE2021F 11 A3H LA F17fF
3,464 1.74  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
B2014F6A20A B E2024F6 258 1t
3,290 1.74  From 9 June 2014 to 8 June 2024
B2014F6HOB#EE2024F6H8H 1k
4,849 1.63  From 19 December 2014 to 18 December
2024 12,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or affer 19 December 2014;
and 24,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.
BH2014F 128198 EF2024F12A18H
1F - T AY12,000,00017 BE AR #E & 1A
2014F 12198k 2 &1TE  REEH
24,000,000 B EN2015F12H19
Az ®&iTlE-
4,848 1.65  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024

47,200 0.0972

BH2015F1 41288 E2024F12A158 1k

From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027

B2017%11 A23HRE2027F11 228 1t

The fair value of those share options under the 2011 Option
Scheme granted during the year ended 31 December
2017 was HK$727,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB630,000) of which the Group recognized a share
option expense of HK$727,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB630,000) during the year ended 31 December 2017.

FEESAREEZERERAF

REBE2017F12A31BEFEAR
B201 1 FEREFERENBRER
RER727,0008 T (HERHDAR
¥630,000t) ' EPRAREBECRER
2017 12A 318 1Lt & E # R B R E
X727, 0008 T (BERBVARKE
630,0007T) °
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued) 34. Ji IBERE ST ) )
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the REFARBORELEEBREAAEBER
year was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial RHEBHEA -—BEARKX FUMGET &
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon RERELERER AR EEET
which the options were granted. The following table lists the 2R B 1 % 1R 3P E FR A B ABRR

inputs to the model used:

Share options  Share options  Share options ~ Share options ~ Share options

granted to granted to granted to granted fo granted to
employees directors employees directors employees
HEs BES BEs MES HEs

RiiBRE Rt iRE Rt RE Rt R REBRE

Date of grant BB 9 June 2014 26 June 2014 30 December 2014 12 January 2015 23 November
2017
20146898 201468268 20144128308 2015F1A128 20174118238
Dividend yield (%) & BE (%) 3.12% 3.12% 3.12% 3.12% -
Expected volatility (%) TEH K 18 (%) 40.29% 40.35% 40.04% 39.68% 80.18%
Risk-free interest rate (%) B F & (%) 2.06% 2.04% 1.89% 1.59% 1.75%
As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 65,002,000 MR2018F12A318 AR Al B IE A #E
(2017: 65,002,000) share options outstanding under the FETHEO5,002,000 (201 74F
share opfion scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding 65,002,000 ) & AR 17 5 B8 M4 - 1R &
share opfions would, under the present capital sfructure of ARATEAABRAZRE  2HETERK
the Company, result in the issue of 65,002,000 (2017: ITHEBERERENIET65,002,000,
65,002,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company. (20175 :65,002,0000 ) &K &) 8 4h
LBk
As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 65,002,000 MR2018F12A31H KRR R ERE
(2017: 65,002,000) share options outstanding under share SFETHO5,002,000% (201 74F
option schemes, which represented approximately 2.30% 65,002,00017 ) i A 17 5 B8 AR # - 15 5%
(2017: 2.30%) of the Company's shares in issue as at that BARQABEEHITRMNDL2.30% (2017
date. F:2.30%) -
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35. COMMITMENTS 35. A&
(a) Commitments under operating leases (o) REHENERE
As lessee TERATA
The Group leases cerfain land premises and buildings AEERQEHOTHEERET L
under operating lease arrangements, with leases WHERET KEBEHARRFE
negofiated for ferms for 2 vyears with an opfion for WAIEERRIBBERESR B
renewal after that date, at which time all terms will be BRREEENER-

renegotiated.

At each end of reporting period, the Group had total REREHR NREBRE AR

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HEEHERNOARARKEHES R
operating leases falling due as follows: BOIHRNAT:

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARBETT

Within one year —FRr 1,875 2,173

In the second to fifth years, inclusive EZE=FHF (BEEEME) 185 2,598

2,060 4,771
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35. COMMITMENTS (Coninved 35. A&
(b) Capital Commitments (b) &BEAEIE
At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding M2018F12A31H AEEHH
commitments as follows: REITAEWT
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARET T
Capital expenditure in respect of EENERESFE
purchase of property, HBHmREBZ
plant and equipment confracted ERBENE W&
for but not provided in the R#E#EzERRAX
consolidated financial statements 8,518 -
Capital expenditure in respect of B ELERELEE
construction of property, MGHmEEBEL
plant and equipment confracted BRREME BE
for but not provided in the REEzERAX
consolidated financial statements 6,800 -
15,318 =

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
during the year the Group had the following significant related

party transactions:

36. BT 5

BB HRREMBIABEEEN A K
BRERAEBEUNTEABETIRS

Key management compensation FTEEEEME
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARKETT
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe ITEREMET 3,282 2,527

Pension costs — defined contribution BRKESHA - E8

scheme 8 15 -
Equity-settled share option expense BREEBRERX = -
3,297 2,527
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37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. B HHE AT
On 22 November 2017, the Group entered into a sales and MR2017F11A228B AEEBBIFH
purchase agreement with independent third party, to dispose =HRIVEERBEALNE I M A ER
100% shareholding of Jiangyou Kingsfone Properous Marble ARELGERAANZMEE RER/A
Co. ltd., at a consideration of RMB600,000, the disposal R ®600,000T % ESHEE R2018
was completed on 26 March 2018. FI3H20B 5T °
RMB’000
ARETR
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K& E 174
Cash and cash equivalent ReRREFEY 1
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENRIE (437)
Net liabilities BRFH (262)
Non-controlling interest FEIE R & -
(262)
Exchange reserve realised EHREN#E 296
34
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries k=Yl N Al € 566
Consideration RE 600
Satisfied by: B
Cash Re 600
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in ERALEWNBRARNRERBESEED
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries as follows: MAFREEDHMAT :
RMB’000
ARBTR
Cash consideration HeHE 600
less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EHERERBREEED 1
Net inflow cash and cash equivalents FRLENBRRINRE &
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReEBYRAFR 599

FEESAREEZERERAF 2018 5 145
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AKAHEIR12H31TH ZMBRIE
THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARNKRE - -
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other B FRIR - 2 & N Ho A MR IR
receivables 7,125 -
Cash and cash equivalents BekReZEY 59,540 163,850
66,665 163,850
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other payables and accruals E b EN BN ERTE A 2,670 085
Due fo directors B EERIB 831 400
3,501 1,385
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 63,164 162,465
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BWEERARBAEEGE
LIABILITIES 63,164 162,465
NET ASSETS EEFE 63,164 162,465
EQUITY R
Issued capital BT 24,435 24,435
Reserves (Note) M (M) 38,729 138,030
TOTAL EQUITY WD 63,164 162,465
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HEFEN2019F3A25B8 #L /& RiX#
on 25 March 2019. F)E o
Zhang Cuiwei Wang Yihua
RERH TaeE
Director Director
=% il
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER (Continved)

38. ARATFR12A31H ZBMBARMFE

(%)

Note: B 5
Reserve movement of the Company RRBEEZS
Retained
Profit/ Foreign currency
Share  (Accumulated Share option translation
premium losses) reserve reserve Total
REHEHN/
R E (REER) BRERE HERERE BE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 R201781R18 - 2,898 24,485 (27,311) 72
Grant of shares options RiERE = - 630 - 630
Rights issue of shares HRETRR 221,144 - - - 221,144
Total comprehensive loss FEXEEREE
for the year - (100,094) - 16,278 (83,816)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12R318 &
1 Janvary 2018 2018%1 818 221,144 (97,196) 25,115 (11,033) 138,030
Total comprehensive loss FREAEFERAR
e - (141,341) . 42,040 (99,301)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 221,144 (238,537) 25,115 31,007 38,729

39. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board on 25 March 2019.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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HAMBHRRAEZTEN2019F3A25
Bt N AT o
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AR S RHk e

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EEA A IR g R
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
20144 20154 20165 20174 20184
RMB'OO0  RMB'O0O0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTFIT AREBETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR

Revenue WA 18,178 3,680 12,290 31,383 67,719
Loss before tax B AT E 1A (31,772)  (198,940) (124,548) 7,797 (19,270)
Income tax (expense)/credit 5 (X)) /% 3,164 2,675 - - =
Profit/[Loss) for the year FEHEA, (EHE) (28,608) (196,265) (124,548) 7,797 (19,270)

RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents
ARES  ARES ARES ARES  AR%¥S
(restated) [restated) (restated) (restated)

(REH) (REF) (KEY) (BB

Basic earnings/(loss) per share FREARF
(B#E) (11.4) (58.7) (27) 0.5 (0.7)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL wR A BB DLER
POSITION
As at 31 December
R12B31H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
20144 20154 20165 20174 2018%F
RMB'OOO  RMB'O0O0  RMB'0O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR%ETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 254,969 207,401 270,660 247,046 285,992
Current assets mEEE 89,368 124,158 40,762 220,093 141,052
Total assets BEE 344,337 331,559 311,422 467,139 427,044
Current liabilities mEEE 37,026 121,772 138,327 53,768 22,511
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 6,977 3,936 3,719 3,506 3,305
Total liabilities BwAad 44,003 125,708 142,046 57,274 25,816
Net assefs/Total equity FEE/ B 300,334 205,851 169,376 409,865 401,228
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